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Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority

Explanatory Foreword
1.

Introduction

The purpose of this foreword is to provide a summary of the most significant matters reported in the Financial
Statements. It explains the purpose of the Financial Statements that follow, summaries of the Authority’s financial
activities during 2014/2015 and its financial position as at 31st March 2015. It also looks to the future and
considers the challenges faced by the Authority.
2.

Background

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority (DFRA) is responsible for the finances of Derbyshire Fire and Rescue
Service (DFRS), with a gross budget of £39.3m for 2014/2015. The Authority is responsible for providing fire and
rescue services to a population of more than a million people in the City of Derby and the County of Derbyshire.
In 2014/2015 Command and Control received over 15,000 calls and the Authority responded to around 6,500
incidents. The Authority manages its affairs to ensure the economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguards its assets. This remains vital if the Authority is to continue to deliver a high quality service to its
communities. This responsibility is shared by all Members and Officers of the Authority under the leadership of
the Fire Authority and the Chief Executive. The Director of Finance/Treasurer plays a pivotal role in ensuring
financial stewardship.

The Authority continues to face significant financial challenges, particularly through austerity and significant
financial constraint. The 2014/2015 managed underspend largely reflects the Authority’s comprehensive and
timely approach to making savings before the full impact of continuing and emergent funding reductions. The
Authority planned for funding reductions of £5m (25%) over the period of the current Comprehensive Spending
Review (2011/2012 to 2014/2015), and has experienced funding reductions of £4.8m, which represent a 24.4%
reduction in Formula Grant. The Authority has been proactive in its approach to funding reductions, having
secured savings of around £12.2m over the period 2011/2012 to 2014/2015. These have primarily been realised
through the Authority’s ‘Effectiveness Programme’, which was designed to deliver ongoing savings. Of this figure
savings of around £5.6m are anticipated to be sustainable and ongoing in nature. Robust plans are in place to
secure a further £1.3m in 2015/2016 through the programme ‘Fit to Respond’ as endorsed through the ‘Fit to
Respond Service Plan 2014/2017’. The Authority continues to explore and exploit opportunities for continuous
improvement and enhanced effectiveness and efficiency in its service delivery. Performance against budget is
monitored closely by the Authority and also by the Strategic Leadership Team, which consists of the Authority’s
senior officers.
3.

The Financial Statements

This document contains the Authority's accounts for 2014/2015 which have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations (2011) and in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in Great Britain 2014/2015 (‘the Code’) and the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12
(SeRCOP – formally known as the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice). The accounts present a true and fair
view of the financial position and transactions of the Authority. Appropriate accounting policies have been applied
consistently and prudent judgements and estimates have been made in compliance with the Code. The Authority
keeps proper, up-to-date financial records, maintains effective internal control, risk management systems and
takes all reasonable steps to ensure the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The following sections provide the reader with:
•
•
•

An explanation of the accounting statements which follow;
A review of the Authority’s financial performance in 2014/2015; and
The Authority’s financial position as at 31st March 2015.

A glossary of terms is provided on page 69 - 72 of these accounts to assist the reader.
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4.

The 2014/2015 Statements of Accounts

The main statements and their purpose within the accounts are the:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

5.

Statement of Responsibilities – this sets out the responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of
Finance/Treasurer for preparing the accounts.
Annual Governance Statement – this sets out the framework within which financial control is managed
and reviewed and the main components of the system.
Movement in Reserves Statement – this statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other unusable reserves (i.e those reserves which are not
backed by true cash and hold accounting adjustments only). The ‘(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services’ line shows the true cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax setting. The ‘Net
(Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves’ line shows the statutory General Fund
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the Authority.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account – This statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation.
Balance Sheet - this summarises the financial position of the Authority as at 31st March 2015.
Cash Flow Statement - this summarises the total external cash movements during the year for revenue
and capital purposes.
Statement of Accounting Policies – this explains the basis for recognition, measurement and
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts.
Notes to the Core Financial Statements - this set of notes cover all the core financial statements and
provides more information on particular items within the core financial statements.
Pension Fund - Derbyshire County Council administer the Local Government Pension Fund. There are
also two Firefighters’ pension schemes administered by Leicestershire County Council which became
funded schemes on 1st April 2006 whereby any surplus or deficit on the fund is ‘topped up’ by the
Government.
Auditor’s Report to the Authority – this is the report of the independent Auditor on the Statement of
Accounts.
Spending and Funding

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority is a precepting Authority. This means a substantial part of the funds
required to operate are generated from a direct charge on the Council Tax payer, the remainder coming from
Government Grant and income generated by the Authority.
The Formula Grant allocation for 2014/2015 decreased by £2.2m (17.5%) when compared to 2013/2014. The
Fire Authority agreed a budget which amounted to £39.3m in total.
The Authority received Revenue Support Grant of £10.4m, and National Non-Domestic Rates of £5.4m from the
Department for Communities and Local Government. The Authority also issued a precept on each of the District
Councils in the county amounting to £20.3m. Non domestic rates income of £2.7m was received directly from the
district councils. All amounts received are disclosed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.
The Code of Accounting Practice defines how the Authority’s expenditure should be split within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. However, expenditure is at subjective code level (by type)
and the table on the following page shows this expenditure compared to the Updated Original Budget as
approved by the Authority.
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Revenue Expenditure 2014/2015
Revenue expenditure consists of the day-to-day running costs of the Authority, such as employee costs, premises
and transport related costs, as well as any income generated. The 2014/2015 Outturn position is summarised
below, being revenue expenditure of £35.7m against a budget of £39.3m, and income of £39.9m against a budget
of £39.3m. Actual income and expenditure for the 2014/2015 financial year is shown against the Authority’s
Approved Budget below. The underspend against the Budget is £4.1m, of which £3.9m will be transferred to
reserves and £0.2m will be transferred to the Vehicle Replacement Fund. The underspend reflects the Authority’s
comprehensive and timely approach to making savings before the full impact of continuing and emergent funding
reductions. As a result, a favourable level of closing reserves will be essential in supporting the Authority’s
commitment to longer term planning, future development of the Service, and the continued protection of its
communities.
Budget Management Statement
Actual
2013/14

Revenue Expenditure

£'000

Budget

Actual

Variance

2014/15

2014/15

Deficit/ (Surplus)

£'000

£'000

£'000

25,195

Employee Costs (Note 1)

26,253

24,963

(1,290)

1,188

Indirect Employee Costs

1,241

1,178

(63)

2,189

Premises Costs

2,338

2,262

(76)

1,401

Transport Costs

1,339

1,296

(43)

3,675

Supplies & Services (Note 2)

4,017

3,733

(284)

834

824

776

(48)

Minimum Revenue Provision (Note 3)

1,425

1,205

(220)

261

Contribution to Capital (Note 4)

1,764

613

(1,151)

(50)

Use of Reserves (Note 5)

74

(292)

(366)

39,275

35,734

(3,541)

1,233

35,926

Capital Financing Costs

Net Expenditure

Financing of Net Operating Expenditure
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
(19,672)

Precept

(20,183)

(20,331)

(148)

(12,799)

Revenue Support Grant

(10,396)

(10,396)

0

(8,069)

(8,094)

(25)

(627)

(1,035)

(408)

(39,275)

(39,856)

(581)

(7,102)

National Non-Domestic Rates

(1,534)

Other Income (Note 6)

(41,107)

Total Financing

Overall Position

(5,181)

Net Position

0

(4,122)

(4,122)

Note 1 - An underspend of £1.3m reflects a rigorous and challenging approach to vacancy management and to
filling vacancies on a like for like basis. The Service was holding 49 vacancies as at 31st March 2015. DFRS are
currently undertaking an RDS recruitment drive, and will continue to be vigilant when recruiting to vacant posts in
future, whilst taking account of the retirement profile and operational need.
Note 2 - Underspends are in the area of Sprinkler Match Funding £0.16m (due to delayed partner expenditure),
and ICT £0.08m. These are principally in the area of licences and rentals, and both landline and mobile phone
efficiencies. Equipment budget underspends comprise of Smoke Alarms £0.07m and Training Equipment
£0.04m. These are largely offset by approved expenditure on Breathing Apparatus £0.09m which has been
funded through an earmarked reserve.
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Note 3 - An underspend of £0.2m reflects reduced principal repayment in relation to vehicles purchased outright
in preference to leasing, and illustrates revenue budget savings achieved through the purchase of Service
vehicles using prior year underspends.
Note 4 - The underspend represents the balance of the budget surplus, as identified and reported to Members in
February 2014, and provides for revenue funding of £0.6m during 2014/2015. Future capital expenditure will be
determined predominantly through the Service’s five key service development projects, endorsed through the
2014/2017 Service Plan ‘Fit to Respond’.
Note 5 - Reflects Member approved costs of £0.15m associated with the new Joint Headquarters project, to
include feasibility, design development, planning conditions and fees, which were funded through an Earmarked
Reserve. A further £0.09m is in relation to Breathing Apparatus, with expenditure also being funded through
Reserves during 2014/2015.
Note 6 - Additional income of £0.15m relates to Section 31 funding from DCLG. This aims to reimburse
Authorities with costs incurred during 2014/2015 relating to changes announced at the 2012 and 2013 Autumn
Statement specific to business rates. Income of £0.11m arises through the in house administration of the
Treasury Management function (previously outsourced), with further additional income arising through final
Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates Collection Fund net surpluses, as notified by the billing authorities
in May 2015.
Capital Expenditure 2014/2015
Capital Expenditure in the year amounted to £2.1m. This is a variance against the revised budget of £3.1m which
represents £2.86m slippage on schemes into 2015/16 with the remainder being an underspend of £0.24m. The
capital programme was funded as follows: £0.61m from revenue, £0.29m from capital receipts with the remainder
being met from capital grant of £1.50m.
Capital expenditure and financing is summarised in the table below:
2013/14

Capital Expenditure

2014/15

£'000

£'000

308

Building Projects

582

Technology Projects

984

Equipment

1,352

Total

2,138

1,874
2013/14

222
564

Financing of Capital Expenditure

2014/15

£'000
(261)
(1,611)
(2)

£'000
Revenue and Reserves
Capital Grant

(1,496)

Capital Receipts

0

Borrowing

0

Finance Leases

(1,874)

(613)
(29)
0
0

Total Financing

(2,138)

The capital grant consists of £1.049m general Capital Grant Funding from CLG. The Authority has the flexibility
to decide when and how the capital grant is spent, providing that it is spent on capital projects. The remaining
£0.447m relates to a specific capital grant to be spent on the replacement control room project which is a joint
undertaking between Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Leicestershire Fire Authorities. Each authority was
awarded a grant of £1.8m for this purpose (£5.4m in total) and the scheme is due to be completed early in
2015/16.
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6.

Borrowing

Total debt outstanding at 31st March 2015 was £15.7m, £12.05m of which related to borrowing that is owed to the
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) at fixed rates of interest and £3.6m relates to finance leases. No new PWLB
borrowing has been undertaken in the last four years, and the Authority did not enter into any new finance leases
in 2014/2015. The Authority closely monitors borrowing and looks to limit the need to borrow in line with the
Medium Term Financial Strategy to ensure it is prudent and only for capital purposes.
7.

Short Term Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Fire Authority holds £16.5m short term investments which represent short fixed-term deposits held with
various financial institutions as covered by the Treasury Management Strategy. In addition to this, the Authority
also holds £7.038 in cash and cash equivalents, which represents reserves and short term cash balances to
cover day to day expenditure.
8.

Reserves and Balances

At 31st March 2015 the Authority had uncommitted General Reserve of £2.5m (£2.5m as at 31st March 2014),
Earmarked Reserves of £17.2m (£13.15m as at 31st March 2014), a TriControl and New Dimensions Reserve of
£1.9m (£1.9m as at 31st March 2014), a Strategic Reserve of £0.8m (£0.8m as at 31st March 2014), an Invest to
Save Reserve of £0.5m (£0.8m as at 31st March 2014) and Capital Grants Unapplied of £0.7m (£1.2m as at 31st
March 2014). The total balance at the end of the year stands at £23.7m of which £21.2m is committed. A full
review of reserves was under taken as part of the 2015/2016 – 2018/2019 Medium Term Financial Forecast and
budget setting process and was reported to and approved by Fire Authority in February 2015.
The Capital Financing Deferral Reserve consists principally of prior year underspends, after providing for a
transfer to the Vehicle Replacement Fund in each year. The Closing Balance is £14.96m. Although the Authority
has been awarded £1.5m Capital Grant for expenditure in 2015/2016 to help fund the new headquarters, future
Capital Grant awards remain uncertain. The Reserve will be essential in supporting the Capital Programme, the
Authority’s commitment to longer term planning, and the future development of the Service, including alternative
training provision and future Fire Service headquarters requirements.
The TriControl and New Dimensions Reserve is established to fund expenditure associated with the TriControl
project delivery, FireLink and New Dimension commitments. The TriControl project is a joint project with
Leicestershire Fire Authority and Nottinghamshire Fire Authority to replace all 3 control centres using common IT
software to improve resilience.
The Strategic Reserve is set aside to support unplanned expenditure arising from a wide range of corporate risk
and business continuity matters, encompassing items such as staffing (including strike cover), legal challenge,
technology and asset management.
The Invest to Save Reserve provides funding to deliver structural change and pump prime projects which require
investment to deliver savings in the longer term. The reserve also provides for service and delivery improvements
and is also in place to cover future delays or shortfalls in meeting savings targets.
The increase in the level of reserves will be essential in meeting the Authority’s future financial challenges and
will support the Authority’s plans to deliver its services differently. This reflects the Authority’s commitment to
longer-term planning and is consistent with the current review of the Authority’s Capital Programme. Future
investment in a new Fire Service Headquarters and alternative training provision will affect the level of reserves
held in the medium term.
9.

Pension Fund (IAS 19)

An independent actuary has assessed the liabilities for pension schemes in which the Authority participates,
namely the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes and the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Balance Sheet
includes this pension liability of £427.0m (£391.6m in 2013/2014), of which £416.0m relates to the unfunded
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme. The inclusion of this amount is an indication that the Authority has not paid into a
fund, nor set aside, amounts to fully discharge expected future pension costs at current valuations. Although the
accounts include the full pension liability, it is actually incurred over many years, not in one financial year. It does
not affect the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern as it refers to future liabilities which will be met by
future contributions. A more detailed analysis of the Authority’s pension liability can be found in Note 35.
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10.

Future Outlook

The Authority has set a balanced budget for 2015/2016 and the ‘Fit to Respond Service Plan 2014/2017’ sets out
the Service’s priorities for the next two years. In updating its Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Authority
continues to monitor and assess the sensitivities and impact of proposed changes in funding mechanisms,
national and regional projects and opportunities for partnership working. The Authority continues to plan for
challenges presented through the ongoing effects of Local Government Reform. Local and national initiatives
include business rates pooling, the continuing effects of Business Rate Retention and the Localisation of Council
Tax, the introduction of a new Emergency Services Communication system, changes in pension’s related
legislation, and uncertainty over future capital funding and funding formulas for the Fire and Rescue Service.
The financial crisis and associated recession resulted in a sizeable, mostly permanent, increase in borrowing.
The Conservative Government have been relatively explicit about plans for total public spending over the next
parliament, and will set out future spending plans in July with greater detail to follow in the Autumn Statement.
Austerity will continue for the foreseeable future. Further to the announcement of the Authority’s provisional
settlement in December 2014, the Authority continues to model further funding reductions which result in a
budget shortfall of around £3.7m - £4.1m over the period 2015/2016 through to 2018/2019, as set out in more
detail in the Medium Term Financial Forecast 2015/2016 – 2018/2019. This is kept under continual review.
The Authority recognises that the longer term financial stability of the Service, and the protection of the
communities it serves, relies upon the delivery of significant future savings through different service delivery
models and focussing our resources on risks and priorities through intelligence led, risk based decisions. Whilst it
is clear that the Authority has the relevant strategic financial and operational planning skills to navigate the
medium term, future financial and operational success will rely on delivery of significant invest to save projects
and difficult decisions therein for the Authority in assessing how we deliver the service in the future
Strong financial performance for the year, and the subsequent increase in its level of reserves, ensures that the
Authority is well equipped to make decisive steps to progress towards new models of service delivery which
focuses on continuing to meet the needs of its communities in a time of extended public sector austerity and
severe financial constraint.
These accounts were approved by Derbyshire Fire Authority on 24th September 2015. There were no material
events that might affect the statement between the Balance Sheet date and the date of approval.

Signed:

Simon Allsop
The Director of Finance/Treasurer to Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority

8

Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Authority's Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
•

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.

The Authority has determined The Director of Finance/Treasurer as the officer that;
•

manages its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguards its assets.

•

approves the Statement of Accounts.

The Director of Finance/Treasurer's Responsibilities
The Director of Finance/Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom. The Statement is required to present fairly, the financial position of the
Authority at the accounting date and its Income and Expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2015.
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, The Director of Finance/Treasurer has:
•
selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
•
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
•
complied with the Code of Practice.
The Director of Finance/Treasurer has also:
•
kept proper accounting records which are up-to-date; and
•
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Derbyshire Fire
and Rescue Authority at 31st March 2015 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2015.

Signed:

Simon Allsop
The Director of Finance/Treasurer to Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Date: 24/9/2015

Signed:

Councillor Roland Hosker
Chair, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Date: 24/9/2015
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DERBYSHIRE FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2014/15
“The right things are being done, in the right way,
for the right people, in a timely inclusive, open,
honest and accountable manner’
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Content of the Annual Governance Framework
1. What is an Annual Governance Statement?
2. Scope of Responsibility
3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
4. Review of Effectiveness
The Governance Framework (Key elements 1 – 13)
5. Corporate Documents Published as Sources of Assurance
6. Significant Governance Issues
7. Certification of Assurance
1. What is an Annual Governance Statement?




Explains publicly how an organisation manages its governance and internal control measures
An open and honest account of how an organisation ensures its financial management systems are
adequate and effective
Demonstrates the organisation has a sound system of internal control, assuring utmost integrity in all its
dealing.

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority
to conduct a review at least once a year, and publish a statement by 30 September along with the Statement of
Accounts.

2. Scope of Responsibility


Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority (the Authority) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Authority also has a duty
under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.



In discharging this overall responsibility, the Authority is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which
includes arrangements for the management of risk.



The Authority has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy
of the Authority’s code is on our website, www.derbys-fire.gov.uk Code of Corporate Governance. This
AGS explains how the Authority has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, regulation 4(3).

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the Authority is
directed and controlled, along with its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its
communities. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic priorities and to consider
whether those outcomes have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money.
The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and outcomes and can therefore
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only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Authority’s policies,
aims and outcomes, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

4. The Governance Framework
The main body of the Authority’s governance framework consists of six core principles, adopted from the
CIPFA/SOLACE framework document ‘Delivering good Governance in Local Government’. These principles are
the foundation to the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance, which can be accessed here: Code of
Corporate Governance. The governance framework during 2014/15 incorporated, at the highest level, elected
Members of the Authority, with sub- committees and working groups nominated to review and scrutinise specific
areas of service performance. Introduction to the Authority and its Committee Structure.
The roles and responsibilities of the overall Service and its constituent parts in respect of Governance can be
summarised in the following model. The effectiveness of controls and the arrangements to cover risk diminish the
further removed they are from the Service’s activities.
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Review of Effectiveness
4.1 Identifying and communicating the Authority’s Vision of its purpose and intended
outcomes for citizens and service users.
Our Vision, Service Priorities and Core Values are based on external drivers and consultation feedback relating
to what local people say matters most to them. The Vision describes the long term aspirations, with the Service
Priorities ensuring the Authority’s resources are focused on reducing risk to the most vulnerable people in
Derbyshire, underpinned by the Core Values that describe the way the Service and employees will conduct
themselves.
The Authority identifies and communicates its Vision, Service Priorities and intended outcomes for the
communities of Derbyshire in a series of strategic plans, including the Integrated Risk Management Plan, and
reports that are updated and published annually on the external website: Corporate Plans.
The Service continues to increase its use of social media tools including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and Audio
Boo to communicate key prevention messages to ensure the Vision and Service Priorities are achieved.

Business Planning Events
During October 2014 two business planning events took place where the middle manager cohort was
brought together to develop the 2015/16 Service Action Plan. The first event was focused on reviewing
the Service Core Values that underpin individual and group behaviour, while the second was focused on
identifying issues and problems then developing opportunities for improvements– these became the
foundation for the Service Action Plan 2015/16.

4.2 Reviewing the Authority’s Vision and its implications for the Authority’s governance
arrangements.
The Authority considers it imperative that there are robust arrangements in place for reviewing the Vision and this
is reviewed annually as part of the Strategic Planning Cycle. This strengthens the link between the aspirations of
the Vision and the realisation of individual Portfolio objectives and projects. The Authority scrutinises specific
areas of service performance relevant to contributing towards the Vision through the Governance and
Performance Working Group (GPWG) who meet quarterly. This enables the Service to produce and publish an
Annual Report which highlights key achievements made against its Vision / Service Priorities in the format of
‘what the Service said it would do’, followed by ‘what it did and how it actually performed’. The constitutional
framework that determines how Authority Members deliver good governance is kept under review by the
Solicitor/Monitoring Officer and approved by the full Authority with the effectiveness of internal control considered
annually by the Director of Finance/ Treasurer.

4.3 Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance
with the Authority’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.
Review of Protection Portfolio
The Service Plan 2014 – 17 identified five Service Development Themes, one of which was ‘Service
Improvement’. This included a full review of the Protection Portfolio that was completed during 2015. The review
has identified many areas of improvement in relation to efficiency and effectiveness, including financial savings to
the Service and improved processes, without jeopardising the quality of the services it delivers.

Review of DFRS ICT Infrastructure
In June 2014, the Service invited the ‘Society of Information Technology Management’ – SOCITM to conduct a
review of the structure, organisation and skills within the Systems and Information Team. This team comprises of
the ICT Team, Performance and Data Team and Risk Information Team. SOCITM is an IT professional body for
people involved in the management of IT and digitally enabled services delivered for public benefit.
The review was conducted over two phases with the ICT Team reviewed in the first phase commencing in June:
the second phase was conducted in September.
The final report was completed in November and presented to the Fire & Rescue Authority in December 2014.
Key outcomes and in particular, areas of weaknesses included:
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a need for stronger technical management of all the resources available in all the teams to
ensure that they can support and anticipate the needs of customers for the services
a need to strengthen the ICT Team to take account of areas of ICT service delivery
additional resources to cope with the ‘Business As Usual’, project-based concepts with regards
to new business functionality
too many software databases that need to be reviewed and ascertained whether they are
retained, transitioned to other repositories or deleted
a need for an ICT Strategy, Service Level Agreement, a project management process, a
governance structure and commissioning process for use in all cases.

An Action Plan has been implemented to manage these areas of weaknesses.

Customer Satisfaction Reports Carried Out in 2014/15
The Service has conducted a number of customer satisfaction surveys during 2014/15, which continue to show
high satisfaction with the services provided. The results are listed below.

Customer Satisfaction
survey

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

After the Incident

96% (13)

92% (24)

80% (5)

94% (34)

Home Safety Check

100% (139)

100% (74)

98% (47)

100 (51%)

Business Fire Safety

100% (56)

100% (33)

100% (25)

100% (24)

(figures in brackets refer to the number of returns)

Evaluations Completed During 2014/15
Volunteering / CVS partnership
As a result of the evaluation undertaken on the Volunteer role, the Service has committed to employing a full-time
Volunteer Co-ordinator. A two year strategy has been developed which will support the recruitment of 150
volunteers throughout the Service.

Internal Consultations Completed
Corporate Financial Services Survey (CFS)
An internal consultation identified that 85% of employees said the information provided by CFS was very or
generally accurate and clear. 89% said the team were extremely or very responsive and helpful. 90% said they
were both extremely or very knowledgeable and professional.

Employee Suggestion Scheme
The Employee Suggestion Scheme has been continuously improved, with improvement in response times, whilst
still providing feedback to all suggestions to demonstrate they are valued. As a result the number of suggestions
received in 2014/15 has increased to 77.

Internal Audit
Financial Management arrangements have been reviewed by internal and external audits and are embedded and
operating effectively. Active budget monitoring takes place at all levels of the Service and regular and
comprehensive reporting takes place to the full Authority.
The Service has an independent Head of Internal Audit via the Central Midlands Audit Partnership who carry out
a schedule of internal audit activities. A fundamental role of Internal Audit is to provide Members and senior
management with independent assurance on the Authority’s overall control environment, comprising the systems
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of governance, risk management, and internal control and to highlight control weaknesses together with
recommendations for improvement. The overall opinion provided by Internal Audit confirmed there was an
adequate control environment in place across the Service but with some areas that could be improved.
The Internal Audit highlighted to Members the limited level assurance rating for IT back-up procedures.
The action taken by the ICT team to address these weaknesses is being monitored and reported to
Members through the Governance and Performance Working Group (GPWG).

External Audit
The Authority's accounts are subject to external audit by KPMG with no significant audit risks identified in the
2014/15 Audit Plan.

Performance Management and Data Quality
To ensure services are delivered in accordance with the Authority’s objectives, performance reports are
scrutinised monthly by Strategic Leadership Team Members, quarterly by GPWG, and biannually by the full Fire
& Rescue Authority.
In 2014/15 further assurances were provided through the introduction of a Service Delivery Performance Board,
Area Performance Action Group and Local Performance Action Group (commencing in January 2015). These
groups have ownership and accountability for station performance and how it is managed and monitored. See the
diagram below:

Governance level
Fire & Rescue Authority
Governance & Performance
Working Group (GPWG)
Strategic level
PO Performance meeting

Area level
Area Performance Action
Group (APAG)
Station level
Local Performance Action
Group(LPAG)
Performance monitoring is captured through the Service Performance Dashboard which provides 'live' incident
data allowing service managers and Authority Members to make truly informed decisions. This has increased the
level of transparency and scrutiny within the Service.
There have been major improvements to capture and analyse performance management information. Further
improvements include introducing a balanced scorecard approach to performance management, which will
integrate four key principles:





Are we demonstrating value for money?
What must we excel at?
Can we continue to improve and create value?
How do our customers see us?
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Corporate Risk Management
Corporate risk management is a central role of the Strategic Leadership Team and is the process whereby the
Service methodically address the risks attached to its activities. To achieve this, the Service has a dynamic
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) that identifies the threats and opportunities that could impact on its Service
Priorities.
The management of the CRR is carried out by members of the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT), with assistance
from the Service Management Group (SMG), and GPWG who regularly review existing and emerging risks and
where appropriate take mitigating action to reduce the level of risk, down to a tolerable level. The management
of corporate risks are held within the Performance Dashboard.
Corporate Risk 8: Resource
In November 2014, it was agreed to remove this risk as resource was being capture through other
Corporate Risks and measures.

Organisational Assurance Audits
The Organisational Assurance team conducted a range of checks and balances to ensure firefighter safety during
2014/15. These included station audits, incident monitoring and debriefs. Outcomes and learning from the
information gained was shared through the Operational Assurance Group and Health and Safety Committee
where decisions were made and corrective actions implemented. The Operational Assurance Bulletin and
meetings were used to further share and disseminate critical information.
In 2014/15 seventeen Station Health Checks were undertaken. There were various levels of exemplary practices
as well as areas of issues / poor performance.
Where poor performance was identified, the team compiled a corrective action log that it passed to the relevant
Response Team (Station Manager) for them to control and manage within an appropriate timescale. The
Organisation Assurance Team also made provisions to return to the station to ensure those corrective actions
were in progress / made.
No significant issues were identified.
During 2014/15 the activities undertaken by the Service’s Organisational Assurance team have been
subject to a thorough review. The purpose of this review was to identify areas of under and over
assurance, areas of duplication and waste. The outcome of this review has led to the development of an
efficient and effective Corporate Operational Assurance Framework that will describe how effective
Operational Assurance will be achieved.
From April 2015 Stations audits will be conducted by the relevant Performance and Support Officer - this
will lead to an increase in the number of checks undertaken in 2015/16.

4.4 Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-executive,
scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication.
The roles and responsibilities for the respective functions of the Authority, the Authority’s Principal Officers,
Monitoring Officer and Treasurer, the scheme of delegation, standing orders, contract standing orders and
financial regulations, together with the protocols for effective communication and escalation are detailed in the
Authority’s Members Handbook, which is located on the website. Arrangements are in place for these matters to
be reviewed periodically, with recommendations made to the Authority for updates or amendments where
necessary.

4.5 Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for Members and staff.
The Service has Core Values which detail the Authority’s expectations with respect to standards of behaviour.
Supporting these Core Values, the Authority has in place Codes of Conduct for both its Members and staff. The
Codes of Conduct are supported by a comprehensive framework of processes and procedures for employees
and Members.
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During 2014/15 the Core Values were reviewed during planning days in October with senior management that
were then shared with the wider service.
Affiliations to professional associations are encouraged, with Members complying with the Local Government
Association’s code of ethics and behavioural standards.
The Authority has a robust zero tolerance strategy in place to eliminate bullying and harassment from the
workplace. This involves strong leadership, Core Values, a comprehensive set of policy documents, training for
employees and a range of active and reactive measures.
The Authority continues to place great emphasis upon the importance of ethical standards of elected Members.
The Localism Act 2011 removed the statutory requirement for a standards committee who were in place to deal
with any complaints relating to elected Members. To ensure transparency and ethical standards are maintained,
the Monitoring Officer supplies an Annual Report. Also, the Authority has implemented a voluntary Standards
Committee,
The Localism Act 2011 provides for the appointment of an Independent Person or persons to assist in the
complaints process under the new ethical standards regime. The Authority has appointed one Independent
Person and can use the services of other local authorities’ Independent Persons if required. A robust
constitution, strong ethical standards framework coupled with appropriate guidance and the independent
overview ensure high standards of conduct by Members (Councillors) on the Authority using an appropriate and
measured response to any issues.

4.6 Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of
delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are
taken and the processes and controls required for managing risks.
The Authority has in place a comprehensive set of standing orders, financial regulations and delegated powers
which clearly define how decisions are taken and associated authorisation levels. During 2014/15, the Service
has reviewed schemes of delegation and the compliance with the financial regulations, in line with good practice
guidance.
The Authority delegates powers to the Chief Executive along with the Director of Finance/ Treasurer and
Solicitor/ Monitoring Officer to ensure the efficient functioning of the Service utilising a Scheme of Delegation.
The scheme complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 and details the powers and responsibilities
allocated to the main roles within the organisation and which powers are permitted to be delegated. Scrutiny of
the Scheme of Delegation is achieved through the Annual Governance Statement review and the Authority’s
meeting structure.

4.7 Ensuring the Authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2010).
The Authority complies with the guidance issued by CIPFA entitled ‘Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial
Officer in Public Service Organisations’ which was further supplemented by the ‘Statement on the Role of the
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010)’.
The Director of Finance/ Treasurer monitors the Authority’s compliance with the requirements in the statement.
During 2014/15 the Authority’s financial management arrangements were subject to an independent
audit conducted by the Central Midlands Audit Partnership.
No significant issues were identified through this process with only a few minor control issues that have
been accepted and addressed.

4.8 Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Committee – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.
The Authority’s arrangements for the core functions of an Audit Committee as defined in CIPFA’s Audit
Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities are constituted and discharged through the Authority’s
governance framework, with GPWG acting as the custodians for audit and scrutiny. Through this framework, the
audit and scrutiny of both constitutional and service issues by Members of the Authority are assured. All key
responsibilities are allocated through detailed terms of reference and annual work programmes for the Authority
and each sub-committee and working group. These can be found in the Members Handbook.
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4.9 Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures,
and that expenditure is lawful.
The in-house Solicitor/Monitoring Officer is qualified and annually recertified to practice as a solicitor and receives
national advisory circulars and attends regular law updates to ensure any forthcoming legislation is identified so
that compliance is assured. Continuing Professional Development training ensures that a ‘best practice’ approach
is adopted within the organisation to mitigate against the corporate risk of legislative change.
The Solicitor/Monitoring Officer has the specific duty to ensure that the Authority, its Officers, and its elected
Members maintain the highest standards of conduct in all they do. The Solicitor/Monitoring Officer also monitors
and reviews the operation of the Authority’s Constitution. This ensures that the aims and principles of the
Constitution are given full effect against matters of interpretation of the Constitution's Rules and Procedures.
Policies and Procedures are also reviewed according to an agreed regular review mechanism.
The Monitoring Officer provides support and advice to Members in relation to carrying out their role.
Arrangements for formal reporting to the Authority with respect to the Annual Statement of Accounts, the Annual
Governance Statement, Internal and External Audit, Treasury Management and the Capital Strategy are built into
the annual working group and Authority work programmes. The Director of Finance/ Treasurer also has specific
responsibilities in respect of any unlawful expenditure covered in the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer in Local Government (2010).
No significant issues / non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations have been raised.

4.10 Whistle-blowing, receiving and investigating complaints.
A Whistle-Blowing Policy is in place, along with a free confidential helpline to support staff. During 2014/15, the
Monitoring Officer was responsible for keeping the central record of issues reported under the policy.
Three cases have been investigated under the Whistle-Blowing Public Interest Disclosure Policy since 1 April
2014.
Anonymous complaints are shared with the Service’s internal auditor at Derby City Council.
Human Resource and Legal Services ensures that internal complaints are logged and investigated in accordance
with the service procedure. They assure that all discipline, grievance & complaints under Dignity at Work Policy
are processed in accordance with this policy.
Internal complaints and complaints relating to elected Members are dealt with by the Voluntary Standards
Committee. The Committee have not had to consider any referrals in respect of allegations of breaches of the
Members Code of Conduct during 2014/15. Furthermore there has been no need for the Solicitor/ Monitoring
Officer to make a formal report under Section 5 of the Act. Complaints and Feedback.
The Solicitor / Monitoring Officer monitor external complaints in accordance with the policy. In 2014/15 15
complaints were received, addressed and subsequently reported to the GPWG.

Letters of Appreciation
The Authority also receives a number of letters of appreciation to thank them for the various services they
provide. During 2014/15, 66 letters of appreciation were received.
During this time the Service also received 112 Freedom of Information requests. Charges can be incurred if the
request takes longer than 18 hours. Based on an average cost of £25.00 per hour, the total cost to the Service on
FOI requests has been calculated at £3K.

4.11 Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training.
Members have elected not to undertake an appraisal specific to the Service. Appraisals are carried out within
their Local Authorities.
Members developed and produced the content of their annual development plan, which was approved and
agreed at the Fire & Rescue Authority in June 2014. Development sessions now take place at the start of each
Authority meeting. These sessions offer updated information and development of Members in key areas.
Examples include:
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The Prudential Code and Treasury Management.

 Internal audit requirements and assurances relating to governance.
Additionally there is a budget available for any additional external training needs that are identified and a buddy
system is now in place for all SLT members to support members.
New Members appointed.
In June 2014, a number of new Fire & Rescue Authority Members were appointed. The new Members
underwent an induction session to introduce them to the Service. A training needs analysis was provided,
along with an Induction Members Handbook and meetings with the Director of Finance/ Treasurer and
Solicitor/Monitoring Officer. The training programme is reviewed annually.

The Service’s Appraisal System.
The appraisal system is available to all employees and is conducted by their line manager with standards being
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.

4.12 Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and
other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation.
Our Partnerships
The Authority has established clear channels of communication with the communities and other stakeholders at
both strategic and local level. The Authority is an accountable strategic partner in the Derby & Derbyshire
Neighbourhood Partnership, Health and Wellbeing Boards in Derbyshire and Derby City and Derbyshire Safer
Community Board to name but a few. There are many more partnerships within the Service that are available to
view: Our Partnerships.

Employee Forum
In 2014/15, the Service had an internal Employee Forum which consisted of a cross-section of employees who
provided/received information about organisational issues both to and from employees as appropriate. In recent
years communication and engagement with personnel from across the Service has improved significantly to allow
for employee engagement through a number of channels to replace the employee forum.

Data Transparency
In 2012 the Fire and Rescue Service National Framework made compliance with the ’Code of Recommended
Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency’ an essential requirement (2.9). The Service and Internal
Audit have reviewed its compliance with this code and have ensured the requirements are met.
The Local Government Transparency Code 2014 was published in November 2014; in light of this the
Service has further developed a ‘Data Transparency’ section on the external website to conform to this
publication.

4.13 Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group
working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships,
and reflecting these in the authority’s overall governance arrangements.
The Authority is committed to working in partnership with key stakeholders and partners to deliver its Vision and
meet the needs of our diverse communities. The Service has considered the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
for Derbyshire and Derby City along with the County’s Sustainable Communities Strategy and the Derby City
Plan. The Service is also represented and contributing to the work of the Health and Wellbeing Boards for both.

Derbyshire Police Fire Partnership (DPFP) Limited Liability Partnership (DPFP LLP)
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In December 2014 Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority formally approved and committed to the build of a joint
Fire Police Headquarters at Ripley Police HQ. To ensure the smooth governance arrangement of this partnership
a Limited Liability Partnership was formed called DPFP LLP.
The Chair of the Fire Authority is an appointed Chairperson of the LLP and has delegated powers to act on behalf
of the Fire Authority in making decisions regarding the management and business of the LLP.
The LLP has adopted the financial regulations of DFRS and this ensures that financial decisions are made in
accordance with the agreed protocols and reported to the Authority annually through the Annual Financial
Statement. Budget reporting will continue throughout the financial year and the LLP accounts will be subject to
external audits.
A management board has been formed which sits below the LLP Board and this deals with the day to day
running of the LLP. This operates in accordance with the same delegated powers and reports to the Board
quarterly.
The LLP has developed Terms of Reference and Key Operating Principals which have been approved by the
Authority. These provide guidance on the remit and working practices.

Tri Service Control Project
The Authority acts as the Accountable body to the Tri Service Control Project with the Director of Finance/
Treasurer monitoring expenditure on behalf of the three authorities (Nottinghamshire, Derbyshire and
Leicestershire) through an agreed accountable body agreement.

EMAS Co-location on Fire Stations
Following an approach from East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS), the Authority agreed to work in
partnership with EMAS in the form of co-location on various fire stations. The co-location involved EMAS having
separate facilities on three fire stations as a pilot scheme, allowing them to have a comfortable rest area in
between responding to 999 calls. Memorandums of Understanding have been agreed as to how the partnership
would work and the protocols to adhere.
The introduction of sharing the stations with EMAS improves relationships, helps to reduce their operating costs,
whilst providing the Service with valuable rental income.
During 2015 the Authority has agreed an memorandum of understanding (MOU) to trial an Emergency First
Responder scheme. This will provide a professional blue light (24/7) medical response in partnership with EMAS
on a cost recovery basis.

Primary Authority Scheme agreement with Telefonica UK (O2)
Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service has entered into a Primary Authority Scheme with Telefonica UK (O2), which
places them as the sole assured advisor for all its matters relating to fire safety across the county, providing a
consistent and common approach to fire safety within all O2s estates.
A Primary Authority Scheme Agreement provides business confidence through the provision of robust, reliable
and consistent advice on compliance issues in respect of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

Partnership Register and Toolkit
Each Portfolio works in partnership with a range of organisations from the private, public and third sectors. These
partnerships ensure effective and collaborative delivery of all their services.
The Service has a Partnership Register and Toolkit in place which acts as a governance mechanism for the
partnerships it is engaged with and these are accessible to all employees.

5. Corporate Documents Published as Sources of Assurance


Integrated Risk Management Plan 2013/16

 Service Plan 2014 17
 Portfolio Statement of Assurances 2014/15
 Annual Report 2013/14
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 Strategic Planning Cycle 2015
 Fire Authority Members Handbook 2014/15
 Fire Authority Members Code of Conduct
 Code of Conduct for Employees,
 Code of Corporate Governance
 Protocol on Member/Officer Relations
 Audit Inspection Reports Includes: Statement Of Accounts, Revenue and Capital Budgets, Annual


Audit and Inspection Letter, Public Notifications, Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/18, Financial
Regulations, Scheme of Delegation
Standards Committee Duties

6. Review of Effectiveness
Financial Challenges
During the course of the year, the Authority has dealt with a number of issues listed below and continues to
actively manage these during the next financial year.
The Service has taken comprehensive and timely action to address the severe funding reductions associated
with the Comprehensive Spending Review in 2010. This was managed through our Effectiveness Programme.
This Programme delivered on-going savings of £5.6m at the end of 2014/15. These savings have been delivered
primarily through a review of corporate budgets and a restructure of our support staff. Further details can be
found in the Fire & Rescue Authority 2014/15 Budget Report and year end outturn report.

Industrial Action
During 2014/15 the Service was subjected to industrial action in the form of a series of national firefighter strikes.
This industrial action was in relation to the FBU’s dispute with Government, regarding changes to the Firefighters’
Pension Scheme.
DFRS recruited reservist personnel in July 2013 to supplement the limited number of fully trained fire-fighters
available. The reservist personnel received a basic level of training to allow them to deal with fires and other
emergencies. However, during the extended industrial action the skills of Reservists were increased to allow
them to deal with a greater level of incidents.
A Gold Command meeting was established immediately on notification of industrial action and continually
thereafter, evaluating and revising the resilience cover arrangements and the associated risk assessment as
appropriate. Furthermore the Service worked with partners including the Police, NHS, Highways Agency, along
with other members of the Local Resilience Forum and other Fire and Rescue Authorities to co-ordinate efforts
where possible during such periods of action. During these times the Service continued to provide an emergency
response service, but at a reduced level.
The Service increased its safety messages to ensure that the general public had an increased awareness during
the strikes, asking them to take extra care and to endeavour to prevent emergencies from occurring in the first
place.

Business Continuity
The Business Continuity Management Service Procedure has been revised (May 2015), with minor amendments
to reflect organisational changes and ensure the procedure is proportionate to service needs. All Business
Continuity Local Recovery Plans are amended as required. This enables a more robust audit mechanism of plans
in date and can be reported by means of a specific performance indicator.

Organisational Structure
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The organisational structure in 2014/15 continued to have temporary senior management changes to provide
temporary arrangements in the absence of CFO/CE Frayne. This was managed through calling extraordinary
committee meetings to ensure appropriate temporary arrangements at senior manager level were established to
continue the governance arrangements of the Service.

7. Significant Governance Issues
In the absence of CFO/CE Frayne, Members considered options and determined the interim arrangements to be
made to ensure suitable temporary governance arrangements were in place.

8. Certification of Assurance
Detailed consideration and challenge against the code of corporate governance has been undertaken by the
Annual Governance Statement Working Group. Individual Certificates of Assurance against key areas of
governance have subsequently been provided to the Annual Governance Working Group for consideration, to
support the preparation of this Annual Governance Statement.
The statement is therefore recommended to the Authority for approval.

Signed…………………………………………………..
Joy Smith - Temporary Chief Executive of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service

Signed…………………………………………………..
Councillor Roland Hosker - Chair of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
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Total Usable Reserves
£000

Unusable Reserves
£000

Total Authority Reserves
£000

335,659
0
(23,555)
(23,555)

319,840
11,182
(23,555)
(12,373)

(16,244)
(5,062)

0
0

562
562

(15,682)
(4,500)

15,682
(7,873)

0
(12,373)

5,062
0
(2,500)

(5,062)
(5,062)
(16,652)

0
562
(1,167)

0
(4,500)
(20,319)

0
(7,873)
327,786

0
(12,373)
307,467

Unusable Reserves
£000

Total Authority Reserves
£000

Earmarked General Fund
Reserves
£000

(15,819)
11,182
0
11,182

General Fund Balance
£000

(1,729)
0
0
0

Total Usable Reserves
£000

Balance at 1st April 2014 carried forward
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations (Note 6)
Net (Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year
Balance at 31st March 2015 carried forward

(11,590)
0
0
0

Capital Grants Unapplied
£000

Movement in Reserves during
2014/15

(2,500)
11,182
0
11,182

(2,500)
29,581
0
29,581

(16,652)
0
0
0

(1,167)
0
0
0

(20,319)
29,581
0
29,581

327,786
0
19,036
19,036

307,467
29,581
19,036
48,617

(33,383)
(3,802)

0
0

446
446

(32,937)
(3,356)

32,937
51,973

0
48,617

3,802
0
(2,500)

(3,802)
(3,802)
(20,454)

0
446
(721)

0
(3,356)
(23,675)

0
51,973
379,759

0
48,617
356,084

Earmarked General Fund
Reserves
£000

Balance at 1st April 2013 brought forward
(Surplus) / deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations (Note 6)
Net (Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year
Balance at 31st March 2014 carried forward

General Fund Balance
£000

Movement in Reserves during
2013/14

Capital Grants Unapplied
£000

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.
The (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting
purposes. The Net (Increase)/ Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Authority raises taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position
is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
2013/14

2014/15
Gross
Expenditure
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Net
Expenditure
£000

Community Fire Safety

10,022

(210)

9,812

33,367

Fire Fighting and Rescue Operations

48,743

(816)

47,927

(3)

78

Business Continuity and Emergency
Planning

154

(2)

152

837

0

837

Corporate and Democratic Core

957

0

957

0

0

0

0

0

0

41,836

(1,534)

40,302

59,876

(1,028)

58,848

Gross
Expenditure
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Net
Expenditure
£000

6,384

(364)

6,020

34,534

(1,167)

81

Cost of Services

(2)

Other Operating Expenditure (Note 8)

(29)

17,721

Financing and Investment income and
expenditure (Note 9)

17,930

(46,839)

Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Incomes (Note 10)

(47,168)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of
Services

29,581

(22,152)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension
assets

21,098

(1,403)

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
Property, Plant & Equipment

(2,062)

(23,555)

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

19,036

(12,373)

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

48,617

11,182
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Non Distributed Costs

BALANCE SHEET
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the
Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

1st April
2013
£000
Restated –
see note 3
page 37

31st March
2014
£000
Restated –
see note 3
page 37

71,178
8,425
723
0

71,114
8,541
1,060
0

Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Investment in Joint Venture

80,326

80,715

Non-Current Assets

272
4,502
0
17,842

255
4,881
0
22,462

Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Short Term Investments
Cash & Cash Equivalents

22,616

27,598

Current Assets

(17)
(59)
(679)
(6,895)
(554)

0
(172)
(679)
(7,095)
(526)

Bank Overdraft & Cash
Short Term Provisions
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Deferred Liabilities

(8,204)

(8,472)

Current Liabilities

(0)
(12,725)
(4,169)
(397,684)

0
(12,047)
(3,643)
(391,618)

Long Term Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Deferred Liabilities
Net Pension Fund Liability

(414,578)

(407,308)

Non-Current Liabilities

(441,567)

(319,840)

(307,467)

Net Assets

(356,084)

15,819
(335,659)

20,319
(327,786)

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

(319,840)

(307,467)

Total Reserves
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Notes

31st March
2015
£000

11
12
13
30

53,966
7,485
1,358
545
63,354

15
16
14
17

259
6,222
16,500
7,038
30,019

17
19
14
18
32

0
(246)
(679)
(6,475)
(490)
(7,890)

19
14
32
35

7
21

0
(11,368)
(3,153)
(427,046)

23,675
(379,759)
(356,084)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation
and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using
the indirect method.

2013/14
£000s

2013/14
£000s

Notes

2014/15
£000s

2014/15
£000s

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
11,181

2,926
37
246
1
(201)
379
(17)
(16,086)
(3,104)

(15,819)
(2,126)

(6,764)
893
1,233
(4,638)

(17,825)
(22,463)
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Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements:
Depreciation
Impairment and downward valuations
Amortisation
Impairment for bad debts
(Increase)/decrease in creditors
Increase/(decrease) in debtors/bad debts, including
pensions
Increase/(decrease) in inventories
Movement in pension Liability
Other non-cash items charged
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
on the provision of services that are investing and financing
activities

29,581

11
13
18
16
15
35

3,278
18,877
230
0
620
1,341
4
(14,331)
(40,675)

(30,656)
(2,836)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

22

(3,911)

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities

23

18,131

Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities

24

1,205

Net (increase)
equivalents

or

decrease

in

cash

and

cash

15,425

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting
period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting
period

(22,463)
17

(7,038)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting Policies
A) General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2014/2015 financial year and its
financial position at the year-end of 31st March 2015. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, which those Regulations require to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices.
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2014/2015 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/2015, supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. All figures in the Statement
have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.
B) Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:
•

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

•

Income from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

•

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

•

Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

•

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

•

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled,
the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

C) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice
of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.
D) Exceptional items
When items of income and expenditure are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, whether on
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the Accounts, depending on
how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s financial performance.
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E) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies, or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by
the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices, or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Authority’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors
discovered in prior figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period.
F) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding non-current assets during the year:
•

depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

•

revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains
in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

•

revaluation gains reversing previous losses charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

•

amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its
overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in
accordance with statutory guidance. This charge is calculated as follows:
•

For capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008 or which in the future is supported capital
expenditure, the MRP policy is to set aside a provision equal to 4% of the previous year’s Capital
Financing Requirement.

•

From 1st April 2008 (including 2014/2015) for all unsupported borrowing, excluding finance leases, the
MRP policy uses the Asset Life Method i.e. MRP will be an annual charge based on the estimated life of
the assets. The provision is set aside in the year following the capital expenditure.

•

For any finance leases, the MRP will be the equal to the element of the actual finance lease repayment
that reduces the ongoing balance sheet liability i.e. the principal element of the charge or repayment, in
line with CLG guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation losses, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution
in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
G) Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such
benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service
to the Authority.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services,
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but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy, and
are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when the Authority is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an
employee or group of employees, or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund
and pensioners, and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority are members of three separate pension schemes with defined benefits related to pay
and service. The schemes are as follows:
Uniformed Firefighters – Original 1992 Scheme
On 1st April 2006 the firefighters' pension scheme changed to a funded pension scheme and the pension costs
that are charged to the Authority's accounts in respect of these employees are equal to the contributions paid to
the pension fund for these employees. This scheme was only open to those firefighters currently in the scheme
as at 31st March 2006 and the employers contribution was higher than for the new firefighters pension scheme.
All contributions are made into a pension fund and equally the payments to pensioners are paid out of the same
fund. This is then balanced by a contribution to or from the fund by the government each year.
Uniformed Firefighters – New Scheme
On 1st April 2006 a new firefighters' pension scheme was established for new firefighters, retained firefighters and
for uniformed employees carrying out operational duties in the old pension scheme who wished to transfer to the
new scheme. This scheme is also a funded scheme and operates in exactly the same way as the old scheme
except for the reduced level of contribution from employees and employers which reflects the different conditions
and benefits of the new scheme.
From April 2015 a new firefighters' pension will come into force and supersede the two schemes above.
Other Employees
Other employees, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by Derbyshire County Council. The pension costs that are charged to the Authority's accounts in
respect of these employees are equal to the contributions paid to the funded pension scheme for these
employees. Further costs arise in respect of certain pensions paid to retired employees on an unfunded basis.
This scheme is, however, funded.
Pension costs are included in the accounts to meet the requirements of IAS 19 which requires the Authority to
see beyond its commitment to pay contributions to the pension fund and to determine the full longer-term effect
that the award of retirement benefits in any year has had on the Authority's financial position.
H) The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
•

The liabilities of the Derbyshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of future earnings for current
employees.

•

The value of the pension liabilities is calculated by discounting the expected future benefit payments for
the period between the expected date of payment and the date at which they are being valued. This is
so that a valid comparison can be made with the value of the Fund’s existing assets, allowing the asset
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coverage on the valuation date to be measured. When the valuation date is moved on one year, one
year’s worth of the discount ‘unwinds’ as the benefit payments are one year closer, and the result is an
increase in the value placed on the liabilities of one year’s ‘interest’ (based on the discount rate in force
at the start of the year).
•

•

The assets of Derbyshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at
their fair value:


quoted securities – bid value



unquoted securities – professional estimate



unitised securities – bid value



property – market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:


Current service cost – the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period.



Past service cost – the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or
withdrawal of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a significant reduction by
the entity in the number of employees covered by the plan).



Gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Authority
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of
employees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs.



Net Interest – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time. This includes allowance for interest on the current service cost. The
2012/13 accounts have been restated in order that this category includes interest income
previously classified as Expected Return on Assets in line with IAS19 requirements.



Actuarial gains and losses (Re-measurements) – changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve.
The 2012/13 accounts have been restated in accordance with IAS19 - this category includes
Expected Returns on Assets (which were previously separately identified) excluding those
amounts now included in Net Interest.



Contributions paid to the Derbyshire pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the
year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.
I) Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:

Page 30 of 75

•

Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

•

Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts
are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
J) Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities (including Creditors and borrowing costs).
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.
This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued
interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year according to the loan agreement.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year of repurchase or settlement where applicable.
During the year ended 31st March 2015 the Authority did not undertake any re-financing of loans. The fair value
of the finance lease liabilities is published by the Debt Management Office (Public Works Loans Board).
Financial Assets (including Debtors).
The Authority only has one type of financial asset: loans and receivables. These are assets that have fixed or
determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest), and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service or
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. It is policy to
charge 12 months interest to each financial year. Outstanding interest is not accrued to the total of the loan.
K) Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:
•

the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments;

•

the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant
or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
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Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring
fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund
capital expenditure.
L) Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Authority as a
result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation and impairment losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.
The losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
M) Inventories
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
N) Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition
is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held
for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which
the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Properties are not depreciated but
are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are
posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Investment properties
were revalued during the year by Alan Orme MRICS, a chartered surveyor from Derbyshire County Council’s
Property Services Division.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line
and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.
O) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment
are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific
assets.
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The Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry
into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
•

A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the
lease liability.

•

A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the
lease period).
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment
losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a
rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).
The Authority as Lessor
Operating Leases
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of
the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of
the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
P) Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in
accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12 (SeRCOP). The
total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between
users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:
•

Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multifunctional, democratic
organisation.

•

Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Cost of Services.
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Q) Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The Authority has a deminimus level for capital spend of £10,000, so expenditure below this level will not be recorded as capital spend.
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service
potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
The Authority does not own any Heritage Assets.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
•

the purchase price

•

any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
Assets are carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
•

investment properties and assets surplus to requirements – market value;

•

infrastructure, community assets, specialist operational properties and assets under construction –
depreciated historical cost;

•

all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use
(existing use value – EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is
used as a proxy for fair value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Land
and Building values used in the Accounts are based on a valuation carried out by Derbyshire County Council’s
Chartered Valuation Surveyor Alan Orme MRICS as at 1st April 2014 and are in accordance with guidance from
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
Asset values are included in the Asset Register at their component levels. The Authority has a de-minimus
threshold for componentisation which is a net book value (current valuation less depreciation) of £200,000. Below
this amount individual assets will be disregarded for componentisation purposes.
An example of
componentisation might be that a Fire Station might be listed as land, station building, training block, Breathing
Apparatus training buildings etc. Components could also take the form of the roof, fixtures and fittings, lift or
windows should their value exceed the de-minimus level.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Where
decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for:
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).
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•

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised
for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for:
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

•

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets
under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:
•

dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by
the valuer

•

vehicles – straight-line allocation over the estimated life of the vehicle

•

plant and equipment (for capitalised finance leases) – over the life of the finance lease

•

IT equipment – straight-line over 5 years

•

Furniture – straight-line over 10 years

•

infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 40 years

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical
cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
It is the Authority’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is made in
the final year.
R) Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
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If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to noncurrent assets and valued at the lower of their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell, and their
carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts.
Receipts are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or
set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
S) Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation
that it is probable will require settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the
best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
T) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.
U) Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority.
V) Reserves
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in
that year to be charged against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves are
explained in the relevant policies.
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W) Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Authority has a material interest in a joint venture with Derbyshire Constabulary, Derbyshire Police Fire
Partnership, Limited Liability Partnership. In the Authority’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in the joint
venture are recorded as financial assets at cost.
X) VAT
VAT paid is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs. VAT received is excluded from income.
Y) Cashflow Statement
The cashflow statement has been prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’.
Z) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.
2. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. There is a high degree of uncertainty
about future levels of funding for local government. However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is
not sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to
reduce levels of service provision.
3. Material differences between restated 2013/2014 accounts and those published in the 2014/2015
financial statements.
Transfers To/From Reserves, in Note 7 the 2013/2014 Closing Position has been restated to reflect transfers in
year.
The 2012/13 and 2013/14 Balance Sheet has been re-stated to re-classify Short Term Investments as Cash and
Cash Equivalents as these had been previously mis-classified.
4. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
Pensions Liability Uncertainties
The results of any actuarial calculation are inherently uncertain because of the assumptions which must be
made. Actuarial assumptions are used to select a single scenario from the range of possibilities. The results of
that single scenario are included in the pension calculations. However, the future is uncertain and the actual
experience will differ from those assumptions; these differences may be significant or material. In addition,
different assumptions or scenarios may also be within the reasonable range and results based on those
assumptions would be different. Actuarial assumptions may also be changed from one valuation to the next
because of mandated requirements, fund experience, changes in expectations about the future and other factors.
A sensitivity analysis was conducted by both actuaries employed by the Authority to calculate its outstanding
pension assets and liabilities. The results of this analysis are included in Note 35.
5. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Post Balance Sheet Event
Pension Ombudsman Determination – Commutation Terms - Milne v GAD
There is a non-material adjusting post balance sheet event, following the Ombudsman’s Determination that an
opportunity to review commutation factors was not undertaken appropriately and in a timely manner, the
Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) has been instructed to make arrangements for payments to be made
to others affected, reflecting the more beneficial terms that would have applied had commutation factors been
reviewed and revised where appropriate. GAD has prepared tables for use in the calculation of redress, on the
basis that commutation factors had been reviewed and revised at December 2001 and December 2004. GAD
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has issued guidance to scheme administrators and has indicated that the department may issue further guidance
on various matters in due course. As such an estimate of the potential cost to the Authority and timing of
associated payments is currently unclear. HM Treasury have confirmed that DCLG will be making the required
funding available to make the necessary payments to affected individuals. No adjustments have been posted in
the 2014/2015accounts on the basis that any impact is not likely to be material but appropriate adjustment will be
made in 2015/2016.
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance on 30 June 2015. Events taking
place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this
date provided information about conditions existing at 31st March 2015, the figures in the financial statements and
notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
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6. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

(2,760)

0

2,760

(3,794)

0

3,794

0

0

0

(18,055)

0

18,055

116

0

(116)

(26)

0

26

Amortisation of intangible assets

(246)

0

246

(230)

0

230

Capital grants and contributions applied

1,611

0

(1,611)

1,496

0

(1,496)

2

0

(2)

29

0

(29)

(1,277)

0

1,277

(20,580)

0

20,580

1,233

0

(1,233)

1,205

0

(1,205)

261

0

(261)

613

0

(613)

1,494

0

(1,494)

1,818

0

(1,818)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(562)
(562)

562
562

0
0

(446)
(446)

446
446

0
0

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

2014/15
Usable reserves

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

2013/14
Usable reserves

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Sub total
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to Capital Adjustment Account
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
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Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

2014/15
Usable reserves
General Fund
Balance
£000

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

2013/14
Usable reserves

(2)

0

2

(29)

0

29

2

0

(2)

29

0

(29)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(27,988)

0

27,988

(27,302)

0

27,302

11,902

0

(11,902)

12,971

0

(12,971)

(16,086)

0

16,086

(14,331)

0

14,331

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is
different from council tax and non-domestic rating income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:

197

0

(197)

173

0

(173)

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(10)

0

10

(17)

0

17

(16,244)

562

15,682

(33,383)

446

32,937

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account:

Total Adjustments
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7. Transfers To/From Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans
and the amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to fund expenditure in 2014/2015.

Balance
at
1st Apr
2013
£000
Earmarked Reserves
Invest To Save Reserve
Strategic Reserve
TriControl and New
Dimensions Reserve
Total

Transfers
Out
2013/14

Transfers
In
2013/14

£000

£000

Restated
Balance
at
31st Mar
2014
£000

Transfers
Out
2014/15

Transfers
In
2014/15

£000

£000

Balance
at
31st Mar
2015
£000

6,867
1,994
849
1,880

0
(1,224)
0
0

6,286
0
0
0

13,153
770
849
1,880

0
(237)
0
0

4,039
0
0
0

17,192
533
849
1,880

11,590

(1,224)

6,286

16,652

(237)

4,039

20,454

The 2013/2014 Closing Balance has been restated to reflect transfers in year.

Capital Receipts Reserve
Included within the figures below for the financial year ending 31st March 2015 is £28,547 received by DFRS for
the disposal of fleet vehicles in year.
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000
Balance at 1st April
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Balance at 31st March

0
(2)
2
0

0
(29)
29
0

8. Other Operating Expenditure
2013/14
£000
(2)

2014/15
£000
(Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets

(29)

9. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2013/14
£000
834
17,066
(63)
(116)
0
17,721

2014/15
£000
Interest payable and similar charges
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets
Interest receivable and similar income
Income & expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value
Other investment income
Total

773
17,166
(112)
103
0
17,930

10. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes
2013/14
£000
(19,672)
(7,326)
(12,575)
(1,049)
(6,217)
(46,839)

2014/15
£000
Council tax income
Non domestic rates
Non ring-fenced government grants
Capital grants and contributions
Pension top-up grant
Total

(20,331)
(8,094)
(10,396)
(1,049)
(7,298)
(47,168)
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements on Balances

Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 2014
Additions
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluations increases / (decreases) recognised in the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition – disposals
Derecognition – other
Assets reclassified – from AUC
Other movements in cost or valuation
At 31st March 2015

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment
£000

Assets Under Construction
£000

Other Land and Buildings
£000

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &
Equipment
£000

Movements in 2014/2015:

74,700
8

18,143
1,351

477
213

93,320
1,572

(9,219)

0

0

(9,219)

(17,811)

0

0

(17,811)

0

(24)

0

(24)

0
0
0

0
343
1,030

0
(343)
0

0
0
1,030

47,678

20,843

347

68,868

(11,588)
(1,890)
11,588

(10,618)
(1,388)

0
0
0

(22,206)
(3,278)
11,588

0

0

0

0

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1st April 2014
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
De-recognition – disposals

(1,030)

(1,030)

0

24

0

24

(1,890)

(13,012)

0

(14,902)

At 31st March 2015

45,788

7,831

347

53,966

At 31st March 2014

63,112

7,525

477

71,114

At 31st March 2015
Net Book Value

42

Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 2013
Additions
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluations increases / (decreases) recognised in the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition – disposals
Derecognition – other
Assets reclassified – from AUC
Other movements in cost or valuation

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment
£000

Assets Under Construction
£000

Other Land and Buildings
£000

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &
Equipment
£000

Movements in 2013/2014:

72,552
293

17,310
650

607
347

90,469
1,290

1,571

0

0

1,571

0

0

0

0

0
0
284
0

(9)
0
192
0

0
(1)
(476)
0

(9)
(1)
0
0

74,700

18,143

477

93,320

At 1st April 2013
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation reversal recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
De-recognition – disposals

(10,161)
(1,427)
0

(9,130)
(1,497)
0

0
0
0

(19,291)
(2,924)
0

0

0

0

0

0

9

0

9

At 31st March 2014

(11,588)

(10,618)

0

(22,206)

At 31st March 2014

63,112

7,525

477

71,114

At 31st March 2013

62,391

8,180

607

71,178

At 31st March 2014
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Net Book Value
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Capital Commitments
As at 31st March 2015, the Authority has entered into a small number of contracts for the construction or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment. These 2015/2016 commitments amount to £2.820m. Similar
commitments as at 31st March 2014 were £0.478m.
Revaluations
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. The Authority undertook a full revaluation exercise
during this financial year. The valuation resulted in a significant downward valuation in the Authority’s land
(£13m). This follows a change in the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) guidance which requires
specialist assets such as Fire Stations to be valued using the Modern Equivalent Asset basis as an estimate for
Depreciated Replacement Cost rather than the predominant use in the surrounding area as was previously used.
Annual valuations are required under the Code of Practice for investment properties and these were undertaken
as at 1 April 2014.
All valuations are carried out by Alan Orme MRICS, a Chartered Valuation Surveyor from Derbyshire County
Council’s Property Services Division. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors.

12. Investment Properties
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000
103

(121)
(18)

Rental income from investment property

0

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property

(77)

Net gain/(loss)

(77)

The Authority’s investment properties are houses situated on stations for the use of fire fighters. In order to
conform with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standard 13 (IFRS13), revenue from masts,
where space is leased out to communication companies, is no longer recognised as investment income. DFRS
masts are operational assets; therefore the associated income is now treated as operational income. Investment
properties are only those held for income purposes.
There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Authority acts as lessor for these
properties. The Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or
to carry out repairs, maintenance or enhancement.
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:
2013/14
£000
8,425
116
0
8,541

2014/15
£000
8,541

Balance at start of the year
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Transfer Telecom Masts to Vehicle, Plant, Furniture & Equipment
Balance at the end of the year

(26)
(1,030)
7,485

The re-valuation of investment properties during 2014/15 resulted in an overall decrease in value.
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13. Intangible Assets
The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part
of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The
intangible assets include only purchased licenses.
All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of
use to the Authority. The useful life assigned to the software suites used by the Authority is five years.
The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. It is not possible to quantify exactly
how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading; therefore the amortisation of £230,191
charged to revenue in 2014/2015 was absorbed as an overhead across all the service headings in the Net
Expenditure of Services.
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

Balance at start of year:
- Gross carrying amounts

1,178

1,760

- Accumulated amortisation

(455)

(700)

723

1,060

582

564

Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions:
- Purchases

0

(36)

Amortisation for the period

Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

(245)

(230)

Net carrying amount at end of year

1,060

1,358

14. Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:
Long-Term
31st March
2014
£000

Current

31st March
2015
£000

31st March
2014
£000

31st March
2015
£000

Investments
Loans and receivables
Total Investments

0
0

0
0

0
0

16,500
16,500

Debtors
Financial assets carried at contract amounts
Total included in Debtors

0
0

0
0

688
688

1,001
1,001

(12,047)
(12,047)

(11,368)
(11,368)

(679)
(679)

(679)
(679)

3,643
3,643

3,153
3,153

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

(3,714)
(3,714)

(4,010)
(4,010)

Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Total included in borrowings
Other Long-term liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total other long-term liabilities
Creditors
Financial liabilities carried at contract amounts
Total creditors
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The only gains and losses linked to financial instruments are income receivable from short term investments and
interest payable on Public Work Loan Board (PWLB) loans. Quantitative disclosures have been included on the
face of the Income and Expenditure account. The analysis of financial instruments above includes amounts
relating to non statutory debtor and creditor balances due in less than one year.

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

Interest Expense
Total expense in Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision
of Services

Total
£000

Financial Liabilities:
measured at amortised
cost
£000
Financial Assets: Loans
and receivables
£000

Total
£000

2014/15

834
834

0
0

834
834

773
773

0
0

773
773

0
0

(63)
(63)

(63)
(63)

0
0

(112)
(112)

(112)
(112)

834

(63)

771

773

(112)

661

Interest income
Total income in (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Net gain/(loss) for the year

Financial Assets: Loans
and receivables
£000

Financial Liabilities:
measured at amortised
cost
£000

2013/14

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities
Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and creditors
are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments.
The fair values of loans, provided by the Public Works Loans Board, are as follows:
31st March 2014
Carrying
amount £000
Financial Liabilities

31st March 2015

Fair value £000

(12,726)

(14,556)

Carrying
amount £000
(12,047)

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value.
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Fair value £000
(14,927)

15. Inventories
31st March 2014
£000

31st March 2015
£000
172
73
10
255

Uniforms and clothing
Operational Equipment
Miscellaneous

180
71
8
259

Total

Total Inventories recognised as an expense during the period 2014/2015 are £91,062.

16. Debtors
31st March 2014
£000

31st March 2015
£000
1,587
2,044
1,252
(2)
4,881

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Provision for Bad Debts
Total

2,504
2,569
1,151
(2)
6,222

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:
31st March 2014
£000

31st March 2015
£000
2
10
22,450
22,462

Cash held by the Authority
Bank current accounts
Short-term deposits
Total

0.4
5.6
7,032
7,038

18. Creditors
31st March 2014
£000

31st March 2015
£000
(555)
(4,096)
(2,444)
(7,095)

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Total

(510)
(3,719)
(2,246)
(6,475)

The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority within 30 days of
such invoices being received by the Authority was 99.2% during 2014/2015.
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19. Provisions
Provision for
Employment
Issues
£000
Balance at 1st April 2014
Less charges in year
Increases/(Reductions) applied in 2014/2015
Balance at 31st March 2015

24

Provision for
Business Rates
Appeals £000

Provision for
Construction
Industry
Scheme
Disclosure

148
52

(24)
0

46
194

52

Total

£’000
172
52
22
246

The Provision for Employment Issues provided for costs in relation to the Part Time (Prevention of Less
Favourable Treatment) Regulations, specific to annual leave and sickness leave entitlement. In the unlikely event
of any future claims, costs will be minimal and will be charged directly to the revenue account.
The Provision for Business Rates Appeals was established during 2013/2014 in accordance with changes arising
through Local Government Finance Reform. The provision is adjusted each year in line with notifications received
from billing authorities.
The Provision for Construction Industry Scheme (CIS) Disclosure is in relation to the voluntary disclosure of CIS
to HMRC. Initial work to establish the full CIS and penalty exposure has been undertaken externally.

20. Contingent Liabilities
The Authority is required to disclose if there are possible obligations which may require payment or a transfer of
economic value.
Part Time (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations
A House of Lords ruling found the exclusion of Retained Firefighters from the Pension Scheme and their sick pay
arrangements to be unlawful. The provision established for compensation payments is described in Note 19 and
has been written down from the accounts, but it did not allow for the cost of retrospective access for Retained
Duty Staff to the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme. This covers RDS employees who were employed at any time
during the period 1st July 2000 to April 2006, with funding to be met by both employer and employee
contributions. The Authority is exposed to some measure of financial risk as a result, which creates a Contingent
Liability. The financial impact of this contingent liability is difficult to quantify, with the current estimate of the
potential cost to the Authority being £0.6m. Employer costs are to be assessed via GAD undertaking a national
assessment of deficits across all Firefighter pension schemes in 2016. The deficits, which will include the
employer shortfall in the retrospective RDS scheme, will be addressed by an increase in employer contributions
across various schemes. It is anticipated that the associated cost will be identified in 2016/17 but collected via the
increased employer contribution rates from 2019 to 2034. An Earmarked Reserve has been established
accordingly.
Contractual Overtime – Changes to Holiday Pay Calculations
In November 2014 the Employment Appeal Tribunal ruled that holiday pay should include non-guaranteed
overtime. This stems from a discrepancy between EU and UK Law. In the UK employers have generally used
basic pay to calculate how much employees are paid while they are on holiday whilst the European Working
Time Directive suggests that overall remuneration should be taken into account. The amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability at this time. However, this is considered low risk due to the level of
annual leave awarded to the workforce which is significantly greater than that stipulated in the Working Time
Regulations. This in turn minimises any challenge of non-compliance with this Tribunal judgement.

21. Unusable Reserves
31st March 2014
£000
(7,970)
(55,764)
391,617
(224)
127
327,786

31st March 2015
£000
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absences Account
Total Unusable Reserves
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(10,032)
(37,002)
427,046
(397)
144
379,759

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated
gains are:


revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;



used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or



disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment
Account.
2013/14
£000
(6,567)
(1,571)
0
0
168
(7,970)

Balance at 1st April
Downward (Upward) revaluation of assets
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account
Balance at 31st March

2014/15
£000
(7,970)
(1,906)
(463)
0
307
(10,032)

Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
Note 6 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.
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Capital Adjustment Account
2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000
(55,547)

2,759
0

2014/15
£000
Balance at 1st April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
- Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
- Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment

246

- Amortisation of intangible assets

3,005

Sub total

0

4,001
17,812

36
22,079

Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve
3,005

(55,764)

230

- Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

0

2014/15
£000

0

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in
the year

22,079

Capital financing applied in the year:
- Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

(2)

(29)

(1,611)

- Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital
financing

(1,496)

(1,233)

- Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged
against the General Fund (MRP)

(1,205)

0

- Prior year MRP adjustment
- Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 2013/14
- Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund – prior yrs

(261)
0
(3,107)

Sub total

(3,222)
(55,764)

(613)
0
(3,343)

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(115)

0

26
(3,317)

st

Balance at 31 March

(37,002)

Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory
arrangements require that benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to
pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees
and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding
will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
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Pension Reserve
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

397,684
(22,152)
27,988

(11,902)
391,618

Balance at 1st April
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31st March

391,618
21,097
27,302

(12,971)
427,046

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and
non-domestic rates income (NNDR) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due
from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across
amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. Changes announced through Local Government Finance
Reform confirmed that, with effect from April 2013, 50% percent of business rates would be kept locally, with 50%
being distributed through the formula grant process. DFRS receives 2% of the local share. The Collection Fund
Adjustment Account includes both Council Tax and NNDR adjustments.

2013/14
£000
(28)
(197)
(225)

Balance at 1st April
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax and nondomestic rates income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31st March

2014/15
£000
(225)
(173)
(398)

Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement
carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.
2013/14
£000
117
10
127

Balance at 1st April
Amount by which remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31st March

2014/15
£000
127
17
144

22. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
The cash inflows for operating activities of £1,705,000 in 2014/2015 (inflows of £4,764,000 in 2013/14) include
the following items:
2013/14
£000
(63)
834
771

Interest received
Interest paid
Net interest paid

2014/15
£000
(100)
773
673
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23. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
2013/14
£000
895
(2)
0
0
893

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets
Investments in Joint Venture
Purchase of other short-term and long-term investments
Net cash flows from investing activities

2014/15
£000
1,115
(29)
545
16,500
18,131

24. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities
2013/14
£000
0
554
679
1,233

2014/15
£000
Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing
Net cash flows from financing activities

0
526
679
1,205

25. Amounts Reported For Resource Allocation Decisions
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about
resource allocation are taken by the Authority on the basis of budget reports analysed across the Authority.
These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In
particular:


no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are charged
to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)



the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year.
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Authority’s income and expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

2014/15

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Fees, charges & other service income
Surplus or deficit on associates and joint ventures
Interest and investment income

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Total
£000

(421)

0

0

(421)

(0)

0

0

(0)

(112)

0

0

(112)

Income from council tax

(20,331)

0

(173)

(20,504)

Government grants and contributions

(18,993)

0

(1,050)

(20,043)

Total Income

(39,857)

0

(1,223)

(41,080)

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

2014/15

Employee expenses

26,141

0

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000
14,348

7,613

0

(293)

7,320

Other service expenses

Total
£000

40,489

0

0

4,023

4,023

1,205

0

(1,205)

0

776

0

0

776

0

0

18,053

18,053

35,735

0

34,926

70,661

Transfer to / (from) reserves

0

0

0

0

Capital expenditure funded from revenue

0

0

0

0

(4,122)

0

33,703

29,581

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Minimum Revenue Provision
Interest Payments
(Gain)/ Loss on Revaluation / Disposal of NonCurrent Assets
Total expenditure

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
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2013/14

Fees, charges & other service income

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

(1,470)

0

0

(1,470)

(63)

0

0

(63)

Interest and investment income

Total
£000

Income from council tax

(19,672)

0

(197)

(19,869)

Government grants and contributions

(19,901)

(0)

(1,049)

(20,950)

Total Income

(41,106)

(0)

(1,246)

(42,352)

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

2013/14

Employee expenses

26,383

0

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000
16,096

7,477

0

(2)

7,475

Other service expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Total
£000

42,479

0

0

3,006

3,006

1,233

0

(1,233)

0

834

0

0

834

0

0

(118)

(118)

35,927

0

17,749

53,676

Transfer to / (from) reserves

0

0

119

119

Capital expenditure funded from revenue

0

0

(261)

(261)

(5,179)

(0)

16,361

11,182

Minimum Revenue Provision
Interest Payments
(Gain)/ Loss on Revaluation / Disposal of NonCurrent Assets
Total expenditure

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
(Note 1)

Note 1 – For 2013/2014, the net surplus reported to the Authority was £5.179m, which differs from the final
outturn by £1,716, being the gain on disposal of a vehicle.

26. Members’ Allowances
The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Authority during the year. Details of Members’
allowances are published in accordance with requirements, on the Authority’s website.
2013/14
£000

83
6
89

2014/15
£000
Allowances
Expenses
Total

86
5
91
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27. Officers’ Remuneration
The Authority’s employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension
contributions) were paid the following amounts (bands with no employees in either year have been excluded):
Remuneration band

2013/14
Number of employees

2014/15
Number of employees

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£95,000 - £99,999
£105,000 - £109,999
£120,000 - £124,999
£130,000 - £134,999
£140,000 - £144,999
Total

22
2
12
0
0
3
0
0
0
1
1
0
1
42

19
3
8
2
1
2
1
2
1
0
0
2
1
42

This table includes the senior employees listed in the tables below.
Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees
The following table provides details on senior officers’ emoluments greater than £50,000 in 2014/2015.

Post holder information (Post title)
Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive1

Salary, Fees
and
Allowances
£
143,934

Expense
Allowances
£
210

Employer’s
Pension
contributions
£
30,658

Total
£
174,802

Temporary Chief Executive2

127,882

2,460

15,602

145,944

Deputy Chief Fire Officer3

27,294

29

3,694

31,017

4

117,867

12,172

25,106

155,145

92,766

3,620

15,425

111,811

Deputy Chief Fire Officer

Temporary Assistant Chief Fire Officer5
Director of Finance

76,167

3,410

9,286

88,863

Solicitor

74,357

702

9,071

84,130

Area Manager – Executive Support

63,194

4,350

7,710

75,254

Area Manager – Response

83,655

3,813

15,434

102,902

Area Manager – Corporate Services

81,995

3,679

15,424

101,098

Area Manager – Learning and Development

59,732

1,880

7,287

68,899

Area Manager – Community Safety

78,283

3,620

12,353

94,256

Expenses Allowances column includes benefit in kind for works vehicle.
Salary, Fees and Allowances column includes overtime payments relating to industrial action cover.
1 – Suspended 1/4/14 – 5/2/15. Authorised Absence 6/2/15 – 31/3/15.
2 – Temporarily promoted on 1/5/14 under interim management arrangements. Post holder held position of Deputy Chief
Executive prior to this. Amounts shown are for the entire financial year 2014/2015 and as such represent part year salary in
each post.
3 – Retired 21/5/14.
4 – Joined 14/4/14. Expenses column includes relocation expenses.
5 - Temporarily promoted on 1/5/14 under interim management arrangements. Area Manager Community Safety prior to this.
Amounts shown are for all of 2014/2015.
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The following table provides details on senior officers’ emoluments greater than £50,000 in 2013/14
Salary (Incl
fees and
allowances)
£
141,261

Expense
Allowances
£
210

Employer’s
Pension
contributions
£
30,089

Total
£
171,560

Deputy Chief Executive

105,946

2,522

11,866

120,334

Deputy Chief Fire Officer

120,072

210

25,575

145,857

Post holder information (Post title)
Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive

Director of Finance

75,750

3,227

8,484

87,461

Solicitor

57,714

1,380

6,464

65,558

Area Manager – Executive Support

57,714

4,167

6,464

68,345

Area Manager – Response

72,984

3,697

15,465

92,146

Area Manager – Corporate Services *

63,265

3,686

13,200

80,151

Area Manager – Learning and Development

58,068

1,722

6,464

66,254

Area Manager – Community Safety

73,921

3,620

15,278

92,819

Expenses Allowances column includes benefit in kind for works vehicle
* Part year costs

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies
are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost
band (including
special payments)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
2013/14

£0 - £20,000
£20,001 - £40,000
£40,001 - £60,000
£60,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2014/15
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number of other
departures agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost
band

2013/14
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2013/14
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2014/15
4
1
0
0
0
0
5

2014/15
4
1
0
0
0
0
5

Total cost of exit
packages in each
band
£000
2013/14
2014/15
0
16
0
25
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
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28. External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors.
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

44
0
0
44

Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor for the year
Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for the
year
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by external auditors during the year
Total

56

44
0
20
64

29. Grant Income
The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2014/2015:
2013/14
£000

(133)
(85)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(86)
(60)
(62)
(4)
(5)
(4)
(3)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(5)
(5)
(1)
(453)

2014/15
£000
Credited to Services
Department of Community & Local Government - FireLink Grant
Department of Community & Local Government - Small Business Rates Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Small Business Rates Relief on 2nd
properties
Department of Community & Local Government - Retail Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Empty New Build Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Reoccupation Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Business Rates 2% Inflation Cap
Department of Community & Local Government - Business Rates Reconciliation Grant
Department of Community & Local Government - New Dimensions
Department of Community & Local Government - Localisation of Council Tax
Department of Community & Local Government - Capitalisation Provision Redistribution
Grant
Youth United – Grant for Fire Cadet Units
Derbyshire County Council - Contribution to Dying2Drive Event
Derbyshire County Council - Contribution to Young Driver Education Package
Department of Community & Local Government - Transparency Code set up
South Derbyshire District Council - Public Health Locality Grant-Fire Cadets Project
Chief Fire Officers Association - Swadlincote Cadets Grant
South Derbyshire District Council - Safer Neighbourhoods Community Funding
Derby City Council - Contribution to support ongoing partnership activity
Toyota - Firesafe Scheme Donation
Mr & Mrs Teager - Donation
Electrical Safety Council - Funding Award Agreement
W.H.Darbyshire & Son - Donation from Executors for New Mills Fire Station
Asian Fire Service Association - Contribution for AGM
Total

(160)
(102)
(0.8)
(47)
(0.2)
(2.6)
(86)
(15)
(88)
(0)
(0)
(8)
(6.4)
(6.2)
(5.2)
(5)
(3.5)
(2.5)
(1)
(0.5)
(0.1)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(540)

30. Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely
with the Authority.
Central Government
Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority – it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the
form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g.
council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments as at 31st March 2015 are set
out in the subjective analysis in Note 26 on Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions.
Members
Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies. During
2014/2015 the Authority was made up of 12 Members from Derbyshire County Council and 4 Members from
Derby City Council. During the financial year 2014/2015 the following transactions were entered into between
Derbyshire County Council - expenditure of £0.3m (of which £0.1m was unpaid as at 31st March 2015) and
income of £0.39m (of which £0.36m was owing as at 31st March 2015). During 2014/2015 the following
transactions were entered into between the Authority and Derby City Council - expenditure of £0.9m (of which
£0.6m was unpaid as at 31st March 2015) and income of £0.8m (all of which was owing as at 31st March 2015).
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Officers
During the financial year 2014/2015 no officers had an interest in an organisation that would have a potential to
control or influence the Authority, or be controlled or influenced by the Authority. (See note below).
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
In December 2014 Members of Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority approved the creation of a Limited Liability
Partnership (LLP) between the Fire and Rescue Service, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and
Derbyshire Constabulary which will see the delivery of the Joint Police and Fire Headquarters project. This
enabled the interests of both partners and their Management Board Members to be protected within a formal
partnership agreement with equal voting rights. The Management Board of DPFP LLP comprises eight Members
in total; four from Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service and four from Derbyshire Constabulary. Three Derbyshire
Fire and Rescue Service officers are also on the Board. The Chair of Derbyshire Fire Authority and the PCC
(Elected Officials) alternate in sharing the roles of Vice and Vice Chair of the Board. Payments to DPFP LLP
amounted to £0.545m in 2014/2015 which relate to the Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service share of new
headquarters build costs to date.

31. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of
assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority,
the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital
expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second
part of this note.

2013/14
£000
18,171
1,796
78
(2)
(1,611)
(261)
(1,233)
16,938
(1,233)

(679)
(554)
(1,233)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Sources of finance
Capital receipts
Government grants and other contributions
Sums set aside from revenue
Direct revenue contributions
MRP
Closing Capital Financing Requirement
Movements in Year

2014/15
£000
16,938
2,067
71
(29)
(1,496)
(613)
(1,205)
15,733
(1,205)

Explanation of movements in year
Decrease in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government financial
assistance)
Assets acquired under finance leases/ (finance leases repaid)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement
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(679)
(526)
(1,205)

32. Leases (Deferred Liabilities)
Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases
The Authority has acquired a number of its fleet of vehicles under finance leases. The assets acquired under
these leases are carried as Vehicles, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:
2013/14
£000
4,536
4,536

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Total

2014/15
£000
3,926
3,926

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the longterm liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority and finance costs that will be payable by the
Authority in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the
following amounts:
2013/14
£000

526
3,643
1,027
5,196

2014/15
£000
Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease
payments):
- current
- non-current
Finance costs payable in future years
Minimum lease payments

490
3,153
804
4,447

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
2013/14
£000
749
2,735
1,712
5,196

Finance Lease Liabilities
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Total

2014/15
£000
684
2,545
1,218
4,447

Operating Leases
The Authority utilises a number of vehicles and buildings under operating lease arrangements. The vehicles
typically have a life of five years and there were two property rents that finished in 2012.
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
2013/14
£000
29
14
7
50

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Total

2014/15
£000
9
7
5
21

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to
these leases was:
2013/14
£000
76
76

2014/15
£000
Minimum lease payments
Total

49
49
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33. Impairment Losses
The Authority incurred expenditure of £1,065,340 in 2014/2015 (£1,108 in 2013/14) due to the writing off in the
accounts of obsolete mobilising software and the separate recognition of masts. These costs have been
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 11 and 13, reconciling the movements in values of
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets, respectively, in 2014/15.

34. Termination Benefits
The Authority terminated the contracts of 5 employees in 2014/2015, incurring liabilities of £41,000 (£0 in
2013/14) – see Note 27 for the number of exit packages and total cost per band.

35. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Participation in Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the
cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the
Authority has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.
The Authority participates in two post-employment schemes, both of which are defined benefit schemes:
•

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), for administrative, support and Control employees, is
administered locally by Derbyshire County Council. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme,
meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

•

The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (FPS). This is split into two parts. The first, called the 1992
Firefighters Pension Scheme, has been closed to new entrants since 6th April 2006. Its members are
wholetime firefighters. It is an unfunded pension scheme, meaning that there are no investment assets
to meet the cost of pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet pension payments as they
fall due. The cost of the scheme is met with contributions paid by employees and the Authority, with any
deficit in the funding required being met by a grant from the Department for Communities and Local
Government. The second part, called the 2006 New Firefighters Pension Scheme, is also an unfunded
pension scheme. The scheme came into effect from April 2006 and its members are retained and
wholetime firefighters. The cost of the scheme is met in the same way as the 1992 scheme.

The Authority also participates in the Firefighters’ Compensation Scheme. The Firefighters’ Compensation
Scheme (England) Order 2006 makes provision for the payment of pensions, allowances and gratuities to and in
respect of persons who die or are permanently disabled as a result of an injury sustained or disease contracted
while employed by a fire and rescue authority. The level of benefits payable is dependent on the salary, service
and the degree of disablement of the member at the time the injury is incurred. Therefore the level of long term
benefits payable can be both material and volatile. For this reason the Compensation Scheme is treated as an
unfunded defined benefit scheme, and accounted for under International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19), in the
same manner as for the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. The cost of the Compensation Scheme is met by the
Authority.
The principal risks to the Authority of the schemes are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the
schemes, structural changes to the schemes (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the schemes), changes to
inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the schemes. These are mitigated to
a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as
described in the accounting policies note.
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Authority is
required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of postemployment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
- Current service costs
- Past service costs
- (Gain)/loss on settlements
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
- Net interest expense
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
- Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense)
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions
- Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
retained settlement
- Other (experience)
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
- reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance
with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:
- employers’ contributions payable to scheme

Local Government
Pension Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000

Firefighters’
Pension Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000

(952)
0
0

(1,156)
0
0

(9,970)
0
0

(8,980)
0
0

(416)

(296)

(16,650)

(16,870)

(1,368)

(1,452)

(26,620)

(25,850)

152

1,702

0

0

431

0

110

39,680

358

(5,604)

11,520

(60,130)

0

0

0

(6,050)

2,871

225

6,710

9,080

2,444

(5,129)

(8,280)

(43,270)

1,368

1,452

26,620

25,850

(642)

(721)

(2,511)

(2,469)

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit
plans is as follows:
Funded liabilities:
Local Government
Pension Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000
28,759
36,219
(22,081)
(25,133)
6,678
11,086
0
0
6,678
11,086

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Sub-total
Other movements in the liability (asset)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation
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Unfunded Liabilities:
Firefighter Pension
Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000
384,940
415,960
0
0
384,940
415.960
0
0
384,940
415,960

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets
Funded liabilities:
Local Government Pension
Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000
20,871
22,081
880
957

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income
Remeasurement gain/(loss)
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest
expense
Other
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employer
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of scheme assets

152

1,702

0
0
642
273
(737)
22,081

0
0
721
308
(636)
25,133

The Firefighter Pension Scheme has no assets.
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

Opening balance at 1st April
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Remeasurements (gains) and losses:
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
retained settlement
Other (Experience gains/losses)
Past service costs
Losses/(gains) on curtailment
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations
Benefits paid
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Closing balance at 31st March

Funded liabilities:
Local Government
Pension Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000
30,635
28,759
952
1,156
1,296
1,253
273
308

Unfunded Liabilities:
Firefighter Pension
Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
£000
£000
387,920
384,940
9,970
8,980
16,650
16,870
0
0

(431)

0

(110)

(39,680)

(358)

5,604

(11,520)

60,130

0

0

0

6,050

(2,871)
0
0
0
(737)
0
28,759

(225)
0
0
0
(636)
0
36,219

(6,710)
0
0
0
(11,260)
0
384,940

(9,080)
0
0
0
(12,250)
0
415,960

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by amount and by
proportion of the total assets held:
31st March
2014
£000
Equity investments
Consumer
Manufacturing
Energy and Utilities
Financial Institutions
Health and Care
Information Technology
Other
Sub-total Equity Instruments
Bonds
Corporate
Government
Other
Sub-total Bonds
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31st March
2014
%

31st March
2015
£000

31st March
2015
%

1,904
3,128
1,971
3,838
1,174
615
324
12,954

8.6%
14.1%
8.9%
17.4%
5.3%
2.8%
1.5%
58.6%

1,990
2,519
1,835
1,953
1,124
505
2,515
12,441

7.9%
10.0%
7.3%
7.8%
4.5%
2.0%
10.0%
49.5%

110
2,742
642
3,494

0.5%
12.4%
2.9%
15.8%

1,214
3,066
665
4,945

4.8%
12.2%
2.7%
19.7%

Property
UK
Overseas
Sub-total Property

1,038
0
1,038

4.7%
0.0%
4.7%

1,219
0
1,219

4.9%
0.0%
4.9%

170

0.8%

187

0.7%

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts
Equities
Bonds
Infrastructure
Sub-total - Investment Funds and Unit Trusts

2,450
652
97
3,199

11.1%
3.0%
0.4%
14.5%

4,545
0
201
4,746

18.1%
0.0%
0.8%
18.9%

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,226

5.6%

1,595

6.3%

22,081

100.0%

25,133

100.0%

Private Equity

Total Assets

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.
The Firefighter Pension Scheme has been independently assessed by the Government Actuary Department
(GAD), and the Local Government Pension Scheme has been independently assessed by Hymans Robertson.
Estimates for both funds have been based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 2015. The
significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
Local Government
Pension Scheme

Mortality assumptions

2013/14
(yrs)
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men
- Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men
- Women

Firefighter Pension
Scheme

2014/15
(yrs)
22.0
24.2

23.5
25.5

22.5
22.5

24.1
26.6

24.1
26.6

26.6
28.6

24.8
24.8

2013/14
%
2.80
3.60
2.80
4.30

Rate of CPI inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

2014/15
(yrs)

22.0
24.2

Local Government
Pension Scheme

Other Actuarial Assumptions

2013/14
(yrs)

2014/15
%
2.40
3.30
2.40
3.20

Firefighter Pension
Scheme
2013/14
%
2.50
4.50
2.50
4.40

2014/15
%
2.20
4.20
2.20
3.30

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example,
assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from
those used in the previous period.
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Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Pension Schemes 2014/2015

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by
0.5%/yr)
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or
decrease by 0.5%/yr)
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or
decrease by 0.5%/yr)
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
(increase or decrease by 0.5%/yr)

Local Government Pension
Scheme
Increase in
Decrease in
Assumption
Assumption
£000
£000
1,087
(1,087)
2,658
(2,658)

Firefighter Pension Scheme
Increase in
Assumption
£000
9,400
32,100

Decrease in
Assumption
£000
(9,400)
(32,100)

1,716

(1,716)

4,800

(4,800)

2,658

(2,658)

32,100

(32,100)

(4,473)

4,473

(37,900)

37,900

Firefighters’ Pension Fund Accounts
Fund Account
2013/14

2014/15
1992
Scheme
£000

£000

2006
Scheme
£000

Total
£000

Contributions receivable:
2,511
370
1,671
4,552
14
4,566

9,465
988
330
10,783
6,217
(4,947)
1,270

Fire Authority
- contributions in relation to pensionable pay
- Other (Ill Health Pensions & Retirements)
Firefighters’ contributions
Transfers in from other authorities
Total Income to the fund
Benefits payable
- pensions
- commutations and lump sum retirement benefits
- transfers out to other schemes
Total Spending by the fund
Net amount payable for the year
Top-up grant received from the Government
Balance of top-up grant for the year receivable from /(payable
to) Communities and Local Government

2,009
329
1,417
3,755
0
3,755

460
0
443
903
0
903

2,469
329
1,860
4,658
0
4,658

9,966
1,923
0
11,889
8,134

3
0
64
67
(836)

9,969
1,923
64
11,956
7,298
(5,151)
2,147

Net Assets Statement
2013/14
£000
729
1,270

(1,999)
0

2014/15
£000
Current Assets
Payments in Advance
Top-up receivable from the Government
Current Liabilities
Payments in Arrears
Amount owing to General Fund
Net Current Assets

756
2,144
(25)
(2,875)
0
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36. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:


credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority.



liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments.



market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Risk management is carried under policies approved by the Authority in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy. The Authority provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority’s
customers.
This risk is minimised through the Treasury Management Strategy, which provides strict criteria for placing
investments with financial institutions. The Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Fire Authority on 21
March 2013 and can be found on the Authority’s website. The key issues within the strategy were:


The Authorised Limit for 2014/2015 was set at £19.2m. This is the maximum limit of external borrowings
or other long term liabilities such as finance leases.



The Operational Boundary for 2014/2015 was set at £18.6m. This is the expected maximum level of
debt and other long term liabilities during the year.



The maximum proportions of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and 40%
respectively.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors regarding inclusion and equality. Individual credit limits are set in accordance with internal ratings in
accordance with parameters set by the Authority.
The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies
cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal
sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to
be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there
was no evidence at the 31st March 2015 that this was likely to crystallise.
The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on recent
experience of default.

Amount at
31st March
2015

Historical
experience
of default

23,538

0.00%

Estimated
Maximum
Exposure to
Credit Risk
31st March
2015
£000
0

20

0.02%

0

£000

Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions
Customers
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Estimated
Maximum
Exposure to
Credit Risk
31st March
2014
£000
0
0

The Authority allows 30 days credit for customers. The age analysis of the customer balance is shown below:
2013/14
£000
3.1
0.4
0.0
1.6
0.5
5.6

Not yet due
Less than three months
Three to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year

2014/15
£000
1.4
16.8
0.0
0.0
1.7

Total

19.9

Liquidity Risk
The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as
needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money
markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to
meet its commitments under financial instruments. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:
2013/14
£000
(679)
(679)
(2,037)
(9,331)

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
More than five years

2014/15
£000
(679)
(679)
(2,037)
(8,652)

(12,726)

Total

(12,047)

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest
rates would have the following effects:


borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise



borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall



investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise



investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact
on the Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair
value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure.
The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. Policy is to aim to keep a maximum of
40% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. The Authority held no variable rate loans during 2014/2015. During
periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be
reviewed to limit exposure to losses.
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There is an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget
and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be
accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.
According to this assessment strategy, at 31st March 2015, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other
variables held constant, the financial impact would be:
Impact of interest rate changes

£000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on CI&E)

0
251
251
0
0
894

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
Foreign Exchange Risk
The Authority has no financial assets, or liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure
to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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Glossary of Terms used in the Statement of Accounts
The definitions within the glossary are designed to give the user an understanding of the technical terminology
contained in the Statement of Accounts.
Accounting Policies
These are a set of rules and codes of practice used when preparing the Accounts.
Accrual
A sum included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to an accounting period for
goods supplied and received or works done but for which payment has not been received or made by the end of
the period.
Actuarial Gain or Loss
The change in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because either events have not coincided with the
actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains or losses), or because the actuarial
assumptions have changed.
Actuarial Valuation
A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present value of benefits to be paid, and an estimate of required
future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a pension fund.
Amortisation
This is the amount set aside to pay for the loss in value of intangible assets.
Budget
This is a statement of the Authority’s (financial) plans for a specified period of time. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Authority prior to the start of the financial year. The Authority’s budget is prepared on an outturn
basis, which means that increases for pay and prices during the financial year are contained within the total
budget figure.
Business Rates Baseline
Determined for individual authorities at the outset of the business rates retention scheme by dividing the local
share of the Estimated Business Rates Aggregate between billing authorities on the basis of their proportionate
share.
Call Off Contract
The Authority tenders for the supply of contracts.
Capital Expenditure
This is expenditure on new assets or on the enhancement of existing assets so as to prolong their useful life or
enhance market value.
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
The Capital Financing Requirement represents Capital Expenditure financed by external debt and not by capital
receipts, revenue contributions, capital grants or third party contributions at the time of spending. It measures the
Authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.
Capital Grant
Grant from Central Government used to finance specific schemes in the Capital Programme. Where capital
grants are receivable, these are used, as far as possible, to finance Capital Expenditure to which they relate in
the year that the grants are received.
Capital Grants Unapplied
The Grants as described above which have yet to be used to finance capital expenditure.
Capital Receipts
Proceeds from the sale of an asset which may be used to finance new Capital Expenditure or to repay
outstanding loan debt as laid down within rules set by Central Government. They cannot be used to finance
normal day to day revenue spending.
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
The principal accountancy body dealing with local government finance.
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Componentisation
The separation of an asset into identifiable and significant components that have differing useful lives. This is so
that components of an asset that have a shorter life than the asset itself are depreciated separately to ensure that
the annual charge to revenue fully reflects the use of the asset.
Consumption of Economic Benefits (CEB)
Impairment caused by either physical damage, or deterioration in the quality of the service provided by the asset.
Impairment caused by a general fall in prices is referred to as No CEB.
Corporate & Democratic Core
The costs associated with corporate policy making and Member based activities, together with costs relating to
corporate management, public accountability and treasury management.
Creditor
An amount owed by the Authority for work done, goods received, or services rendered but for which payment has
not been made as at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
This measure the increase in the present value of pension liabilities generated in the financial year by employees.
It is an estimate of the true economic cost of employing people in the financial year, earning service that will
eventually entitle them to the receipt of a lump sum and pension when they retire.
Debtor
A sum of money due to the Authority in the relevant financial year but not received as at the Balance Sheet date.
Depreciation
The measure of the consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a non-current asset whether
arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes.
Discretionary Added Years
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and which
are awarded under the Authority’s discretionary powers, such as The Local Government (Discretionary
Payments) Regulations 1996, the Local Government (Discretionary Payments and Injury Benefits) (Scotland)
Regulations 1998, or the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001.
DPFP
Derbyshire Police and Fire Partnership (Limited Liability Partnership), a legal entity established to manage the
build of the new joint headquarters.
Earmarked Reserves
These reserves represent monies set aside that can only be used for the specific purpose for which they were
established.
Emoluments
All taxable sums paid to or received by an employee including the value of any none cash benefits received.
Financial Year
The period covered by a set of financial accounts. The Authority’s financial year commences 1st April and finishes
31st March the following year.
General Fund
This reserve is to provide for unexpected expenditure that cannot be managed within existing budgets.
Government Grants Deferred
The balance of grants applied to the financing of non-current assets awaiting amortisation to the Income and
Expenditure Account to match depreciation on relevant assets.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below the amount included on the Balance Sheet.
Imprest Account
Cash held locally to pay for small or urgent items.
Intangible Non-Current Assets
Assets which are not physical such as software licences.
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International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
These standards are developed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and regulate the
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements. Any material departures from these Standards would be
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts. International Financial Reporting Standards are new standards developed
by the IASB.
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) is an independent, privately-funded accounting standardsetter based in London with representatives from several counties in the world. The IASB as the successor to the
IASC adopted existing International Accounting Standards (IAS’s), many of which have been revised.
International Accounting Standard
International Accounting Standards (IAS) were issued by the Board of the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC).The IASC was the predecessor to the IASB.
Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)
A legal business entity whereby the partners have limited liabilities.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
The statutory minimum amount which an Authority is required to charge to revenue on an annual basis as a
provision to redeem debt.
Net Book Value
The amount at which non-current assets are included in the Balance Sheet.
Operating Lease
Agreement whereby ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and an annual rental is charged to the
Income and Expenditure Account.
Operational Assets
Non-current assets held, occupied, or utilised by the Authority in the direct delivery of those services for which it
has statutory responsibility.
Past Service Cost (Pensions)
These costs represent the increase in liabilities arising from decisions taken in the current year to improve
retirement benefits, but whose financial effect is derived from years of service earned in earlier years.
Precept
This is a levy, which the Authority makes through the council tax to pay for services.
Provision
A liability or loss which is likely or certain to be incurred but where the date and cost are uncertain.
Provision for Credit Liabilities
The provision for credit liabilities represents sums set aside for the repayment of Public Work Loans Board
(PWLB) debt and forms part of the capital financing reserve.
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB)
A Government Agency that provides longer term loans to Local Authorities at advantageous interest rates.
Remuneration
Reward for employment in the form of pay, salary, or wage, including allowances, benefits (such as company car,
medical plan, and pension plan), bonuses, cash incentives, and monetary value of non cash incentives.
Retirement Benefits
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are
payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits payable as a
result of either (i) an employer’s decision to terminate employment before the normal retirement date or (ii) an
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are not given
in exchange for services rendered by employees.
Revaluation Reserve
Amount arising from the revaluation of assets; the difference between the former book value of assets on the
balance sheet and the present (re-valued) book value of the asset.
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Reserve
An amount set aside for specific or general purpose.
Revenue Expenditure
The day to day running costs incurred by the Authority in providing services.
Revenue Financing
Resources provided from the Authority’s revenue budget to finance the cost of capital projects.
Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Grant provided by Central Government, through the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, to all Local Authorities,
distributed according to a pre-determined formula. An authority’s Revenue Support Grant amount plus the local
share of Estimated Business Rates Aggregate will together comprise its Settlement Funding Assessment.
Tangible Non-Current Assets
These are assets which are physical such as buildings or land with an expected life of multiple years.
Unusable Reserves
These are reserves resulting from the interaction of legislation and proper accounting practices. These reserves
are not resource backed and cannot be used for any other purpose.
Usable Reserves
These are held as a working balance or for a specific future purpose.
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Burton Road
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Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive
Terry McDermott MA

T 01332 771221
F 01332 270360
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